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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “"STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due
and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market
more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of giving information with regard to the company. The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
2w &R

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan

REGISTERED OFFICE
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, PO. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
Unit B, 5th Floor

Hang Cheong Factory Building

1 Wing Ming Street

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISERS
As to Hong Kong Law
Tang Tso & Lau Solicitors

As to Cayman Islands Law
Conyers Dill & Pearman, Cayman

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
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Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company

(Cayman) Limited (Cayman) Limited
4th Floor, Royal Bank House
24 Shedden Road, George Town
Grand Cayman KY1-1110

Cayman Islands
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Grand Cayman KY1-1110
Cayman Islands
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Hong Kong
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, aged 44, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in April 2008 and chairman
of the Company in June 2008. He took up the role of Chief
Executive Officer since 30 June 2014. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
has over 10 years' experience in corporate finance transactions
and investments, and managerial position involving listed and non-
listed companies in Hong Kong. He obtained a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration (Finance) from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 1995 and Bachelor of Electronic Engineering in
Computer (Hons) from the City University of Hong Kong in 1993.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is the son of Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George,
Executive Director.

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George, aged 72, was appointed as an
Executive Director on 30 June 2014. He obtained a higher
certificate in Mechanical Engineering from Hong Kong Polytechnic
and a diploma in Plastic Technology from Studdeutsche Kunstsoff-
Zentrum, West Germany. He had worked in multinational chemical
company for 30 years in sales, marketing and management
positions. Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George is the father of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, Executive Director and Chairman.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, aged 56, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He obtained Ph.D. Degree in Computer Science from the University
of Minnesota, USA in 1989. In the same year, he was appointed
as an Associate, Research Staff in the Institute of Systems Science
at National University of Singapore. In 1999, he was awarded
a Teaching Excellence Appreciation Award by the Dean of the
School of Engineering of The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and was elevated as a Senior Member of the Institute
of Electrical and Electronics Engineers. He is now the chairman and
chief executive officer of Asia Vision Technology Ltd. He is currently
an Independent Non-executive Director of Ruifeng Petroleum
Chemical Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tam Wing Kin, aged 50, is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008. He is
an Independent Non-executive Director of Fittec International
Group Limited. He is also a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is also a Certified Public Accountant (Practising).
Previously, he had worked in one of the leading international
accountancy firms and several listed companies in Hong Kong. He
has over 20 years of experience in accounting field.

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex, aged 53, is an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Group. He joined the Group in April 2008.
He is an Independent Non-executive Director of e-Kong Group
Limited. He obtained a BSc (Hons) degree in Electrical Engineering
from University of Bath (UK) in 1986 and subsequently a MBA
degree from Heriot Watt University (UK). He has over 15 years
working experience in financial market and corporate finance
activities in both Hong Kong and China.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Ng Suk Fun, aged 57, is the general manager of a major
subsidiary of the Company. She joined the Group in March 2011.
She has over 20 years of working experiences in the garment
industry. She oversees the manufacturing, sales and marketing,
merchandizing as well as general administrative activities of the
swimwear and garment segment of the Group.

Ms. Ng Ka Sim, aged 43, is the Group Financial Controller of
the Company. She joined the Group in November 2011. She has
extensive experience in auditing and financial management. She
had worked in multinational accounting firms and has over 10
years' experience in auditing. She is a member of CPA Australia
and a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She obtained a Bachelor of
Accounting in Australia.

Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, aged 30, is the Company Secretary and
assistant finance manager of the Company. She joined the Group in
May 2008. She is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VOLUNTARILY WINDING UP OF INFO-SOURCE MEDIA
LIMITED

On 11 January 2013, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of Info-Source Media Limited (“Info-Source”) to
voluntarily wind up Info-Source. The Group holds 20% equity
interests in Info-Source and classified it as available-for-sale financial
assets. The investment was fully impaired during the year ended 31
December 2010. It is the Directors’ opinion that the winding up of
Info-Source will not have a material impact on the Group's financial
position. The voluntarily winding up process had been completed
on 19 April 2015.

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND DISPOSAL OF
PARTIAL ISSUED SHARE CAPITAL OF CHARMSTON
(HOLDINGS) LIMITED

(@ On 28 July 2014, (i) Charmston (Holdings) Limited
("Charmston”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, (i) Synergy Chain Limited (“Synergy”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which held 51% of the
issued share capital of Charmston; (iii) Datamax Limited and
Capital Master Holdings Limited, which held 49% of the
issued share capital of Charmston; and (iv) Hoyden Ventures
Limited (“Hoyden”), an independent third party, entered
into the subscription agreement pursuant to which Hoyden
had conditionally agreed to subscribe for 45% of the total
number of issued share of Charmston as enlarged by the
subscription at the consideration of HK$30,000,000 in cash
("Subscription”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W B g B

(b) On 28 July 2014, Synergy entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with Hoyden, pursuant to which Hoyden has
conditionally agreed to acquire and Synergy has conditionally
agreed to sell 273 Charmston shares which represented 15%
of the total number of issued share capital of Charmston
as enlarged by the Subscription, at the consideration of
HK$10,000,000 in cash (”Share Disposal”). Upon completion
of the Subscription and Share Disposal, Synergy held
approximately 13% of the issued share capital in Charmston.
Charmston ceased to be a subsidiary of Company and
the financial results and position of the Charmston and its
subsidiaries (“Charmston Group”) were deconsolidated from
the financial statement of the Company.

The Subscription and Share Disposal were completed
simultaneously and conditional upon (i) satisfactory due diligence
result; (i) capitalisation or waiver of the existing shareholders loan
of Charmston; and (i) the Company having obtained approval from
its shareholders and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The Purchaser also procured discharge of the
existing corporate guarantee given by the Company in favour of
Charmston’s banker.

The Subscription and Share Disposal were approved by the
shareholders on 15 October 2014 and completed on 21 October
2014. Details of the Subscription and Share Disposal are set out
in the announcement of the Company dated 31 July 2014 and
circular dated 25 September 2014.

After the completion of the Subscription and Share Disposal on 21
October 2014, the Group held approximately 13% of the issued
share capital of Charmston. Charmston ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company and the financial results and position of Charmston
Group were deconsolidated from the financial statements of
the Group and were accounted for as available-for-sale financial
assets. Details of the gain on disposal is set out in note 14 to the
condensed financial statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CONTROL OF AN ASSOCIATE

On 30 June 2015, all shareholders of an associate of the Group,
Ricotex Industrial Company Limited (“Ricotex”), entered into
the supplemental agreement to amend, vary and modify the
shareholders agreement relating to Ricotex. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreement, the number of directors in the board
of directors of Ricotex increased from three to five of which three
are appointed by Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”), a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, which holds 45% of the
issued share capital of Ricotex, and two are appointed by other
shareholders, Billions Field Development Limited and All Full Profit
Limited which together hold 55% of the issued share capital of
Ricotex. A quorum for a meeting was also increased to at least three
directors. Board resolution was passed on the same day to appoint
two additional directors nominated by Ratio. In the opinion of the
directors, the increase in voting power due to this amendment
caused the Group has the ability to control over Ricotex. As a
result, Ricotex ceased to be an associate of the Group and became
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. At the date of
deemed disposal of an associate on 30 June 2015, the Group's
interest in Ricotex is revalued at fair value and resulting a gain on
deemed disposal of an associate of approximately HK$61,628,000
recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 30 June 2015. The financial results and position of Ricotex
and its subsidiary are consolidated in the financial statements of the
Company since then.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

On 18 March 2014, the Board of Directors proposed to implement
the share consolidation and capital reorganisation. Immediately
after the share consolidation with effective on 23 April 2014, the
Board proposed to implement the capital reorganisation involving
(i) a reduction in the par value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01 and (ii) a subdivision of each authorised
but unissued consolidated share into 25 new shares of HK$0.01
each ("Capital Reorganisation”). The Capital Reorganisation was
approved by a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 23 April 2014 and with sanction
of an Order of the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands dated 15
August 2014. The Capital Reorganisation became effective on 20
August 2014.

Please refer to announcements dated 18 March 2014, 23 April
2014, 11 August 2014 and 20 August 2014 and circular dated 28
March 2014 for details.

B B W B g B

—EBE DR 2R

—RAFERNA=TH AEEZEBERQT
ﬂEL%Kﬁ@ A ([FEE]) 2 2RRET

M AER] B RERENSER R
2R pE - REA R GHE NREEEE 2 E

FEABH-EZENEREL EHPZRZEFHE
B RES%BEETRAZARARRZZEWE
ARV R ERAR AR ([FIE])EE MW
%%%mEMhi(%W%%@ﬁﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ
WAERAR HERFERSEZ55%0 31T
%K@%&@%zimA%m%MEEy—%
EEZ-NAHEBREETARRUEZTHT
HIRBZMEEEINEE - EER A ARMIERT
3 AN ERE R E AN B A Y = 3 2 1
oA FSETHBARER 2B AR
BARRRZIEZENBRAR -HEELE—M
e Nal A -_E—FF~A=1H K&
ERfeErEniR A FEER  REEAGE
& — B E R R 2 W 4975 %61,628,0007T
BEREE == — ﬂi/\ﬂ +HIEFEZZE
BaxER Bl FeERENB AR 2B
E¥BENMMRARARB ZHEHRERAGZEAIRR

RAEH

—MME=A+/\H BEZEEZZTmR
“Aﬁﬁkﬁﬁﬁ.%%hPAmﬁ Z—/q
FUAZH+=HEME ETSEZERRAN
BH S ROBEBREETEHRN ZHEER
B HEE0.25 T HIE B8 #0.01 7T R () B ATE
BRBETZAMHROIFA AR ERAEBESE
0.01 T2, ([RRAELAR]) - RABHELK
ARARZE—NFNA-_+=ZB8T2KE
BHRXe tERBRB - EFIARREBIE
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ:ﬁ—ﬂiﬂﬂ+ﬁﬁzﬁiﬁ%
RNERESHERB RAEHAER T —
FNA-+BAR-

BAFBEA2ERER T @i A+N\H-
“E-MFEMA-+= EI —mFENA+—
E&_e—ﬂi)\ﬂ;ﬂ-ﬁz/&%ﬁ&ﬁ,ﬁﬁﬁ:
T-NE=A=+/\BZBX

PR 2 7]

e ?’“Hx
E X

011



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B W B g B

CONNECTED TRANSACTION ON ISSUANCE OF SERIES B
CONVERTIBLE NON-VOTING PREFERENCE SHARES FOR
SETTLEMENT OF PROMISSORY NOTES

On 6 October 2014, the Company and Big Good Management
Limited (“Big Good"), a substantial shareholder of the Company,
entered into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally agreed to issue and Big Good has
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 312,500,000 series B
convertible non-voting preference shares (“Series B CPS”) in the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000 to be settled by Big Good by
way of set off against the promissory notes, which will be due on
31 March 2016. The conversion price of the Series B CPS is HK$0.16
per share. The transaction was approved on 26 November 2014 by
an ordinary resolution. On 15 December 2014, 312,500,000 Series
B CPS were issued for settlement of the promissory notes in the
principal amount of HK$50,000,000.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 26 November 2014 the
authorised share capital was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each and
2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting preference shares (“CPS") of
HK$0.15 each to HK$1,050,000,000 divided into 70,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, 2,000,000,000 CPS of HK$0.15
each and 312,500,000 Series B CPS of HK$0.16 each by the
creation of an additional 312,500,000 Series B CPS of HK$0.16
each.

Details of the transaction is set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 6 October 2014 and 26 November 2014 and
circular dated 10 November 2014.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BONUS ISSUE OF SHARES AND WARRANTS

On 18 May 2015, (i) the Board proposed a bonus share issue to the
qualifying shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares for every
one existing share held on 3 July 2015 (the “Record Date"”); and (ii)
the Board also proposed the bonus warrant issue to the qualifying
shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every one existing
share held on the Record Date.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, a bonus share
will be issued to shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares for
every one existing share held on the Record Date. The bonus shares
will be credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalization of an
amount equal to the total par value of bonus shares standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company. On the same
day, another ordinary resolution passed for an issuance of bonus
warrant to shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every one
existing share held on the Record Date. Each warrant will entitle the
holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date falling 12 months
from the date of issuance of the warrant. Issuance of bonus shares
and bonus warrant are completed on 13 July 2015.

Pursuant to the terms of CPS and Series B CPS, the conversion
price of the outstanding CPS and Series B CPS are adjusted from
HK$0.65 per share to HK$0.13 per share and HK$0.16 per share to
HK$0.032 per share respectively as a result of the bonus share issue.
The said adjustments take effect immediately after 3 July 2015. No
adjustment is required to be made as a result of the bonus warrant
issue.

Details of the transaction is set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 May 2015, 24 June 2015, 25 June 2015, 3 July
2015 and 9 July 2015 and circular dated 5 June 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B W B gy B

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Finance results

For the year ended 30 June 2015 (the “Year”), loss attributable to
owners of the Company (including continuing and discontinued
operations) was approximately HK$245,444,000. Comparing to
loss attributable to owners of the Company (including continuing
and discontinued operations) for year ended 30 June 2014 of
approximately HK$104,391,000, the increase in loss attributable
to the owners of the Company was mainly attributable to (i) an
allowance for impairment of goodwill made for swimwear cash-
generating unit of approximately HK$276,054,000 (2014: HK$Nil)
resulting from expecting of economic downturn of European
market and increase in production cost in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") in the coming years; (ii) allowance for
impairment of goodwill of approximately HK$6,250,000 (2014
HK$36,392,000) was made for provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services cash-generating unit for
the Year; (iii) share of losses of an associate of approximately
HK$8,070,000 (2014: HK$870,000); (iv) impairment loss of
available-for-sale financial assets of approximately HK$4,078,000
(2014: HK$Nil); and partially set off by (v) gain on deemed
disposal of an associate of approximately HK$61,628,000 (2014:
HK$Nil); and (vi) decrease in loss for the year from discontinued
operation during the Year of approximately HK$9,255,000 (2014:
HK$26,141,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue and Gross Profit

For the Year, the Group’s total turnover (including continuing and
discontinued operations) and gross profit (including continuing and
discontinued operations) were approximately HK$157,654,000 and
HK$47,344,000 respectively, as comparing to HK$268,877,000
and HK$130,623,000 respectively for the year ended 30 June
2014.

Details of the decrease in total revenue are discussed below:

Manufacturing and trading of high-end swimwear and
garment products (“Swimwear and garment segment”)

The turnover generated from Swimwear and garment segment
for the Year was approximately HK$118,137,000 (2014:
HK$93,322,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$20,970,000 (2014: HK$11,579,000). Gross profit ratio for the
Year was 17.75% (2014: 12.41%). Increase in turnover was mainly
due to the Group has successfully received some new orders from
several new customers during the Year. Increase in gross profit for
the Year was mainly due to the decrease in raw materials costs and
better control over the production costs.

Provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services (“On-line shopping and advertising segment”)

The turnover generated from On-line shopping and advertising
segment for the Year was approximately HK$3,114,000 (2014
HK$3,322,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$1,358,000 (2014: HK$1,437,000). Gross profit ratio for the
Year was 43.61% (2014: 43.26%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B W B gy B

Trading and retail of apparel and related accessories
(“Apparel and related accessories segment”) (discontinued
operation)

The turnover generated from Apparel and related accessories
segment for the Year was approximately HK$36,403,000 (2014:
HK$172,233,000). Gross profit for the Year was approximately
HK$25,016,000 (2014: HK$117,607,000). Gross profit ratio for
the Year was 68.72% (2014: 68.28%). Significant decrease in
turnover is due to the disposal of this segment had been completed
in October 2014 and no consolidation is required for this segment
upon disposal.

Goodwill acquired from deemed disposal of an associate and
business combination

On 30 June 2015, all shareholders of Ricotex entered into
a supplemental agreement to amend, vary and modify the
shareholders agreement relating to Ricotex. Pursuant to the
supplemental agreement, the number of directors in the board of
directors of Ricotex increased from three to five of which three are
appointed by Ratio, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
which hold 45% of the issued share capital of Ricotex, and two are
appointed by other shareholders, Billions Field Development Limited
and All Full Profit Limited which together hold 55% of the issued
share capital of Ricotex. A quorum for a meeting was also increased
to at least three directors. Board resolution was passed on the same
day to appoint the two additional directors nominated by Ratio. In
the opinion of the directors, the increase in voting power due to
this amendment caused the Group has the ability to control over
Ricotex. As a result, Ricotex ceased to be an associate of the Group
and became and is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
The goodwill amounted to approximately HK$61,457,000 arising
on the acquisition of Ricotex in this business combination is
allocated to the Garment and swimwear cash-generated unit that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment of Goodwill

For the Year, the Group's total impairment of goodwill was
approximately HK$282,304,000, comparing to approximately
HK$65,185,000 for the year ended 30 June 2014.

(i) The impairment of goodwiill relates to the provision of
on-line shopping, advertising and media related services
cash-generating unit (“Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU")

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of the Provision
of on-line shopping, advertising and media related services
CGU, having regard to continuous losses making generated
from this CGU carried on by Luxey Online Solutions Limited
as a result of (i) keen competition in the on-line group buying
market in Hong Kong; and (i) the on-line group buying market
is slowing down in Hong Kong. The recoverable amount of the
Provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services CGU is determined from value in use calculation.
The key assumptions are those regarding the discount rate,
growth rate and budgeted gross margin and turnover during
the period. The Group estimates discount rate using pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGU. The growth rate
is based on long-term average economic growth rate of the
geographical area in which the business of the CGU operates.
Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on past
practices and expectations on market development.

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets approved by the directors for the next
five years with the residual period using the growth rate of
5%. This rate did not exceed the average long-term growth
rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU was 13.22%.
Based on the past performance, the Group had revised its
cash flow forecasts for this CGU and the goodwill allocated
to this CGU was considered as non-recoverable. The goodwill
had therefore been fully impaired through recognition
of an impairment loss against goodwill of approximately
HK$6,250,000 during the six months ended 31 December
2014 and year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: HK$36,392,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B BELE W B A b

(i) BEARBELELEN ([RERZELE

(iij) The impairment of goodwiill relates to the swimwear

cash-generating unit (“Swimwear CGU")

An impairment of goodwill relates to Swimwear CGU was
approximately HK$276,054,000 for the Year (2014: HK$Nil).

The recoverable amount of the Swimwear CGU is determined
from value in use calculation (2014: fair value less cost of
disposal using the income-based approach calculation). The
key assumptions for the value in use calculation are similar to
the value in use calculation of Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU as stated in note
(i) above. The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived
from the most recent financial budgets approved by the
Directors for the next five years with residual period using the
growth rate of 3.99% (2014: 5%). This rate does not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.
The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group's activities of manufacturing and trading of high-end
swimwear and related garment products is 14.96% (2014:
11.55%). The calculation further considers a 17.44% discount
on lack of marketability for the controlling interests at 30
June 2014. Based on the past performance and expecting
of economic downturn of European market and increase in
production costs in the PRC in the coming years, the Group
has revised its cash flow forecasts for the Swimwear CGU. The
goodwill has therefore been reduced to its recoverable amount
through recognition of an impairment loss against goodwill of
approximately HK$276,054,000 for the Year (2014: HK$Nil).

Key unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements
are disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Impairment loss of available-for-sale financial assets

Subsequent to the completion of the Subscription and Share
Disposal of Charmston on 21 October 2014, the investment in
Charmston was accounted for as available-for-sale financial assets.
The fair value of approximately HK$7,076,000 was determined
from fair value less cost of disposal using the market-based
approach calculated based on the average price-to-book ratio and
average price-to-sales ratio of several companies listed on the Stock
Exchange (the “Comparables”).

At 30 June 2015, after considering the termination of a licence
agreement with Tonino Lamborghini in February 2015 and a
29.75% (At 21 October 2014: 19.25%) discount on lack of
marketability (determined by the density function for the maximum
of a Brownian motion process by adopting average annualized
volatility of the Comparables and assuming marketing period is
approximately 6 (At 21 October 2014: 6) months), the fair value
of the available-for-sale financial assets had been reduced to its
recoverable amount through recognition of an impairment loss of
approximately HK$4,078,000.

Key unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurements are
disclosed in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share of result from an associate

The Group had an associated company, 45% equity interests in
Ricotex. For the Year, the Group shared loss of HK$8,070,000
(2014: HK$870,000). As at 30 June 2015, due to the supplemental
agreement, Ricotex became a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. For details, please refer to “Control of an associate” on
page 11.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B B e B gy B

OPERATIONS

During the Year, the Group maintained an effective cost measures
in controlling the cost structure of its operations. Besides, the
Group will be extremely prudent in the expansion of its operations
in an organic manner. We also believe that it is of the Group's best
interest to explore different sources of income while still maintains
an effective and efficient overhead structure for our supporting
departments in each of the business segments under operation.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had total assets (including
continuing and discontinued operations) of approximately
HK$248,457,000 (2014: HK$547,816,000). As at 30 June 2015,
the Group had short term borrowings (including continuing
and discontinued operations) of approximately HK$10,000,000
(2014: HK$36,407,000) and no long-term borrowings (including
continuing and discontinued operations) (2014: HK$55,710,000).
The decrease of total borrowings (including continuing and
discontinued operations) was mainly due to the disposal of
Charmston Group during the year. As at 30 June 2015, the
Group had bank and cash balances (including continuing and
discontinued operations) of approximately HK$71,773,000 (2014:
HK$43,565,000). The Group has a current ratio of approximately
2.05 comparing to that of 1.40 as at 30 June 2014. As at 30 June
2015, the Group's gearing ratio of -14% was calculated as net
debt divided by total equity (2014: 29%). Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As most of the Group’s business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States
dollars and Renminbi, the Group's exposure to exchange rate risk
is limited. It is the Group's treasury policy to manage its foreign
currency exposure only when its potential financial impact is
material to the Group. The Group will continue to monitor its
foreign exchange position and, if necessary, utilise hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 23 April 2014, every 5 shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.25 each in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company.

On 20 August 2014, the par value of each issued consolidated
share of HK$0.25 was reduced to HK$0.01 by cancelling paid-up
capital to the extent of HK$0.24 on each issued consolidated share.
Immediately following the capital reduction, each authorised and
unissued consolidated share was subdivided into 25 new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 26 November 2014 the
authorised share capital was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
and 2,000,000,000 CPS of HK$0.15 each to HK$1,050,000,000
divided into 70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each,
2,000,000,000 CPS of HK$0.15 each and 312,500,000 Series B
CPS of HK$0.16 each by the creation of an additional 312,500,000
Series B CPS of HK$0.16 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 24 June 2015, a bonus share
was issued to shareholders on the basis of four bonus shares for
every one existing share held on the Record Date. The bonus shares
will be credited as fully paid at par by way of capitalization of an
amount equal to the total par value of bonus shares standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company. On the same
day, another ordinary resolution passed for an issuance of bonus
warrant to shareholders on the basis of one warrant for every one
existing share held on the Record Date. Each warrant will entitle the
holder to subscribe in cash for one share at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, on the date falling 12 months
from the date of issues of the warrant. Issuance of bonus shares and
bonus warrant are completed on 13 July 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 30 June 2015, issued and fully paid share capital of the
Company included (a) 986,358,758 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each (At 30 June 2014: 986,358,758 of HK$0.25 each); (b)
1,103,333,333 CPS (At 30 June 2014: 1,103,333,333) of HK$0.15
each. Pursuant to the terms of the CPS, the conversion price of
the outstanding CPS has been adjusted from HK$0.15 per share
to HK$0.13 per share as a result of completion of the rights issue,
and further adjusted to HK$0.65 per share as a result of completion
of the share consolidation; and (c) 312,500,000 Series B CPS of
HK$0.16 each (At 30 June 2014: Nil).

Subsequent to the issuance of bonus share, the conversion price
of the outstanding CPS has been adjusted from HK$0.65 per share
to HK$0.13 per share; and 312,500,000 Series B CPS has been
adjusted from HK$0.16 per share to HK$0.032 per share. These
said adjustments shall take effect immediately after 3 July 2015.
No adjustment is required to make as a result of the bonus warrant
issue for both CPS and Series B CPS.

HEDGING POLICY

The Group does not have any material exposure to fluctuations in
exchange or interest rates. Therefore, no hedging measures have
been taken at present.

CREDIT POLICY

The credit terms given to customers are generally based on the
financial strengths of individual customers. The Group generally
allows an average credit term of 30 to 90 days to its trade
customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had 1,276 full time employees
compared with that of 426 in the previous financial year. The
staff costs, including directors’ remuneration, were approximately
HK$49,414,000 (2014: HK$83,344,000). The Group offers a
comprehensive remuneration package and benefits to its full time
employees in compliance with the regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and the Kingdom of Cambodia (“Cambodia”) respectively,
including medical scheme, provident fund or retirement fund. In
addition, the Group adopts a share option scheme for eligible
employees (including Directors) and consultants to provide
incentives to participants for their contributions and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

The Group has pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$641,000 (2014: HK$8,480,000) to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group.

PROSPECTS

For the Swimwear and garment segment, with the effort of our
management, the orders on hand increased gradually in comparing
with last year. Coupling with the establishment of Ricotex,
which is operating a factory in Cambodia, we believed that the
contributions of this business segment would be fruitful. Many of
our existing swimwear customers placed more emphasis on our
future production capacity as well as the cost structures. As such,
it is believed that Ricotex can provide workable solutions to tackle
these issues while retaining our customers and providing more
opportunity to secure new orders in future.

B B e B g B
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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For the Apparel and related accessories segment, the apparel retail
market in Hong Kong remained tough and highly competitive
in the year of 2014 and the Company was of the view that the
retail market would remain harsh in the near future. In view of
this, the Group entered into Subscription and Share Disposal on
28 July 2014 which were completed on 21 October 2014, the
management of the Group believed that the Subscription would
relieve the Company from further straining its cashflow into the
Charmston Group. The release of the Company from the corporate
guarantee further relieved the Group from the contingent liabilities
towards the Charmston Group. The proceeds from the Share
Disposal further improved the cash position of the Group.

Given the disappointing past performance of the Charmston
Group and the unattractive prospects of the local retail market, the
Group will focus its resources in developing its high-end swimwear
manufacturing and trading business after completion of the
Subscription and Share Disposal.

For the On-line shopping and advertising segment, it has been
making losses for several years and this business segment’s
performance continues to be impacted by the keen on-line
shopping and advertising competitive pressure. The Group is
restructuring and transforming to an information technology
and marketing services provider in order to alleviate the financial
situation of the Group.

The management of the Group continues to formulate its business
strategies to optimise the use of its operating and financial
resources. It will consider to diversify its operations including but
not limited to invest in financial instruments in order to ensure
cash availability through managing cash on hand to best meet
the Group cash and liquidity needs which management risk. It will
also consider to reorganise the non-performing business segments
including but not limited to the disposal or downsizing of the non-
performing business segments.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2015 (the
“Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group's operations and assets are located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Cambodia. An analysis of the Group’s performance for
the Year by business segments and consolidated revenue and non-
current assets of the Group by geographical segments are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 55 to 60 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the Year (2014: HK$Nil).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on pages 175 and
176.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group during
the Year are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There are no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Group during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Particulars of borrowings and pledge of assets of the Group as at
30 June 2015 are set out in notes 28 and 30 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the Year were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex
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In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung
Chan Man, Alex shall retire at the Annual General Meeting. All the
retiring Directors, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the Annual General Meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries within one year without payment of compensation,
other than normal statutory obligations.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Board confirmed that the Company has received, from each of
the Independent Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Company considers that they are independent under Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's Board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which any Directors of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2015, the interests and short position of the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the share capital, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
required standards of dealings by Directors of the Company as
referred to in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as
follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares

EERFTETHRAERRSD HBEROR
EEEER

RZE—RAFAAA=1TH EFRARFAEE
TBRABEARQRIKETAERZEZE (TER
BHEREIE KD ([FHRAEED])EXVED)
IR R REEER BABETALRA
BIRIEES R ERFIFEI2EBETEZER
iz kAR SARIRAIZER LR AIZE5.46
E567GFT AR R ERRITEBT R ERE
BEMNEARARRBEEBERSMABRAR ([H
R ZEERKRIT

() RROzHFR

Approximate
percentage of

Number of Nature of Type of issued share

Name of Director Shares interest Interest capital (%)

HERITRE

EspnE R&HEE EEME EHER BHRBE DL (%)

(Note 2)

(Htat2)

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph 235,968,399 Interest of a controlled Corporate 23.92%
(Note 1) corporation

BERAESE 235,968,399  X#EH| A AR NG| 23.92%

(Htet1)
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Notes:

1. These shares are held as to 12,620,000 shares by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen,
Joseph personally and as to 223,348,399 shares by JL Investments
Capital Limited, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph.
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by JL Investments Capital Limited.

2. The percentage of issued share capital had been arrived at on the
basis of a total of 986,358,758 ordinary shares in issue as at 30 June
2015.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rule
5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors
or chief executive of the Company or their respective spouses or
children under 18 years of age had any right to subscribe for the
Shares or any share of its associated corporations.

(ii) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

As at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors had short positions
in Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.
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Substantial shareholders interests and short positions in FTERRAROREBROZEZRAR
shares and underlying shares

As at 30 June 2015, other than the interests of a Director or R-ZE—RAF A NA=Z+H BEX[EE=RTE
chief executive of the Company as disclosed under the heading  TTERA BFR% D « MBI (D R EREFE 2= —
“Directors’ and chief executive's interests in shares, underlying EiFTIEBEZERZRARAETBITRAB Z#ER
shares and debentures” above, the interests and short positions %M LA TN AL R ARG MIBERDFES
of persons in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as B i AR R AIRIEE 5 & B & 157 553361578
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under & 2 B ft 2 5 AR -

Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

(i) Long positions in Shares (i) REBEGZFE
Approximate
percentage of
Type of issued share
Name of Shareholder Number of Shares interests capital (%)
HERITRAE
BRRM®EEB ROBE ERER BABE D%
(Note 2)
(Baz2)

Big Good Management Limited 160,400,000 Corporate 16.26%

Big Good Management Limited 160,400,000 NGT 16.26%

Mr. Ma Hoi Cheuk (“Mr. Ma") 160,400,000 Individual 16.26%

(Note 1)
FElEEE(THBEE]) 160,400,000  fEA 16.26%
(K1)

Notes: it -

1. Big Good Management Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Ma who 1. Big Good Management Limitedd /5 e 4 &
is deemed to be interested in underlying shares held by Big Good WA BB EWR R A HEBig Good
Management Limited. Management Limited #5745 2 1HEAAR (5 2 1

5o
2. see Note 2 on page 29. 2. RE29EMFE2 -
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(i) Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of (i) RELERGRREILTET A HBKLG

equity derivatives of the Company

Name of Shareholder Number of Shares

BER®EEEB R EE

Big Good Management Limited 557,884,615
(Note 3 & 4)
Big Good Management Limited 557,884,615
(B1iE3k4)
Mr. Ma 557,884,615
(Note 2)
HEE 557,884,615
(Htzt2)

Notes:

ZHE
Approximate
percentage of
issued share
Type of interests capital (%)
1HE 1T
B AR BEL
EmER Bat(%)
(Note 1)
(Kiat1)
Corporate 56.56%
/NG 56.56%
Individual 56.56%
A 56.56%

Kiat

1. see Note 2 on page 29.

2. see Note 1 on page 30.

3. Big Good Management Limited (“Big Good") was the holder
of 1,063,333,333 convertible non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.15 each which have no voting rights and are convertible
into ordinary shares. Pursuant to the terms of the convertible non-
voting preference shares, the conversion price of the outstanding
convertible non-voting preference shares has been adjusted from
HK$0.13 per share to HK$0.65 per share as a result of completion
of the Share Consolidation.

4. Big Good was also the holder of 312,500,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each which have no voting

rights and are convertible into ordinary shares.

BE298 M52 -
REB30BE KT -

Big Good Management Limited ( [Big Good | )
#1,063,333,333/ & A E A 74 #0. 157324%
KREREEBRAE R TRRERSE
BERZBBEA *ETJ%—HﬁHxﬂ&m%ﬁ%
MG MARITEZ IR REREEEL
Bz ERERRNE M TXEBEREE
0.13THEEFRIEH0.657T -

Big Good7F £312,500,0000% & % [l {& /4 %
0.167C 2 IR RIEE P Bt R TR 2 BRI
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(iiij) Short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares of
equity derivatives of the Company

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, the Directors of
the Company were not aware of any other person (other than
the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHT TO
SUBSCRIBE FOR EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of equity or debt
securities of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 30 June 2015, the Group has entered into the
following connected transactions during the Year and up to the
date of this report:

(1 @) During the Year, the Group signed a leasing agreement
with Gain Easy Development Limited for an office
premise. Total rental payment was approximately
HK$706,000.

Mr. Lee Tang Kit, Philip, is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of his beneficial interest in Charmston
(Holdings) Limited (a non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company); and Gain Easy Development Limited and
he is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company.
Accordingly, lease of an office premise constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules. After the completion of Subscription
and Share Disposal on 21 October 2014, the Group
held approximately 13% of the issued share capital of
Charmston. Charmston ceased to be a subsidiary of the
Company ad therefore Mr. Lee Tang Kit, Philip, ceased to
be a connected person of the Company from 21 October
2014.
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The approximate aggregate value and the annual caps of each
category of the continuing connected transactions are set out
below:

Category

5l

Total rental payment by the Group to Gain Easy Development Limited
for an office premise

AEERRBERARAAIXN —BRLENEZBENHER

(i)  Subsequently on 26 August 2015, Ricotex, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into (i) the
supply agreement with Dakota Industrial Company
Limited (“Dakota”) pursuant to which Dakota has agreed
to supply raw materials to Ricotex and (ii) the sales
agreement pursuant to which Ricotex has agreed to sell
products to Dakota.

Subsequent to balance sheet date and up to the date
of this report, Dakota supplied raw materials to Ricotex
totally approximately HK$3,515,000 and Ricotex sold
products to Dakota totally approximately HK$5,837,000.

Billions Field Development Limited (“Billions Field"), is
a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level by holding 45% of the issued share capital in
Ricotex; all shareholders of Dakota are family members
of each other. The majority shareholders of Dakota
and their immediately family member are also majority
shareholders of Billions Field. Hence, Dakota is an
associate of Billions Field through common shareholders
and is also a connected person of the Company at the
subsidiary level. Therefore the transactions under the
supply agreement and sales agreement constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules.
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(ii)

Approximate
aggregate value
for the

year ended

30 June 2015
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Annual cap for
the year ended
30 June 2015
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(2) The continuing connected transactions mentioned (i) and (ii)
above have been reviewed by the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company who confirmed that the transactions
have been entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; and

(©) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions stated in paragraph 1 (i)
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group in
accordance with Rule 20.38 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy
of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 30 June 2015
and up to the date of this report, no connected transactions
were entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and a connected person as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as at
the date of this report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's turnover and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers during the Year is
as follows:

The largest customer SPNEYE

Five largest customers in aggregate EAREFAG
The largest supplier SN ]

Five largest suppliers in aggregate hARHER ST

At no time during the Year have the Directors, their respective
associates and any Shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors owns more than 5% of the issued share capital of the
Company) had any interest in any of the five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group.

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of, as at 30 June 2015, any business or
interest of each Director, substantial shareholder and management
shareholders (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and their
respective associates that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any
such person has or may have with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
gl

FEEFRMER
RAFEAEBZFERP RMERELZE
FHERKBEEHDT

Percentage of
the Group’s total

hEEEEBEZESL
Turnover Purchases
CET S
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintain high standards of corporate
governance for the Company. During the Year, the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group's business strategies and maximizes the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting of the Company in line
with the Company’s Articles of Association. As such, the Company
considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure the
Company'’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, Independent Non-
executive Directors as equal board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders, certain Directors were unable to attend the general
meetings, as shown in the section of “Board of directors and
meetings and directors’ attendance” on page 41, due to their other
business engagements.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by Messrs. RSM Nelson Wheeler. A resolution will be

submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint RSM Nelson
Wheeler as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 September 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to maintain
high standards of corporate governance for the Company. During
the year ended 30 June 2015 (the “Year”), the Company is in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code")
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules except provisions
A.2.1,A4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as detailed below:

Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph,
the chairman of the Company, took up the role of Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ") since the position became vacant on 30 June 2014,
and thus there has been no segregation of duties during the Year.
The Board has evaluated the current situation of the Group and
taken into account of the experience and past performance of Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was
appropriate and in the best interest of the Company at the present
stage for vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the
Company in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution
of the Group’s business strategies and maximizes the effectiveness
of its operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure
from time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles
at the appropriate time.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, Non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to
re-election. The current Independent Non-executive Directors are
not appointed for specific terms, but are subject to retirement and
re-election at Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company
in line with the Company’s Articles of Association (“Articles”). As
such, the Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure the Company'’s corporate governance practices are
no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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Code Provision A.6.7

Under the code provision A.6.7 of the CG code, Independent Non-
executive Directors as equal board members, should attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders, certain Directors were unable to attend the general
meetings, as shown in the section of “Board of directors and
meetings and directors’ attendance” on page 41, due to their other
business engagements.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performances. Daily operations and execution are delegated
to management. The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to Directors and
employees;

(d) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Group's
affairs. The Board believes that the balance between Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEETINGS AND
DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board comprises five members and their positions, as at the
date of this report, are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John
Mr. Tam Wing Kin
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex

Details of the backgrounds and qualifications of the Directors are
set out in the section of “Directors and Senior Management's
Biographies” on pages 6 to 8 of the annual report for the Year.
All Directors have exercised due care, skill and diligence and
fulfilled fiduciary duties to all the significant issues of the financial,
operational, compliance and risk management of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”). Each Executive
Director has accumulated sufficient and valuable experience to hold
his position in order to ensure that his fiduciary duties have been
carried out in an efficient and effective manner. Save as disclosed,
none of the members of the Board have, in any respect, relation to
each other in any circumstances.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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The Board meets at least four times each year and more frequently
as the needs of the business demand. The Board held 39 board
meetings and 4 general meetings for the Year. Details of the
attendance of the Board members are as follows:

PORT
o N R E

EEZeEFELEENR UTRERTERS
HERBE - EFTERAFERNRITIORNES
CERMABRRARG - FREFEXNEZLRE
REFENT -

Attendance
HEIR#
Board General
meetings meetings
Executive Directors HITES ETEE3 BREXE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph RERESE 39/39 2/4
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George BT EE 39/39 0/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BYkBTES
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEKEL 11/39 0/4
Mr. Tam Wing Kin R A 14/39 4/4
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex TSR 14/39 0/4

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all
Directors for inspection. A draft of board minutes are circulated to
all Directors for their comment and approved as soon as practicable
after the board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisors if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary, who is
responsible for providing Directors with board papers and related
materials and ensuring that board procedures are followed.
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Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or Director arise, the matter is discussed in an actual
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolution.
Independent Non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest are
present at meeting dealing with conflict issues. Board committees,
including the Audit, Compensation, Finance and Nomination
Committees, all follow the applicable practices and procedures used
in board meetings for committee meetings.

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities insurance cover in respect of legal actions against Directors
and senior management arising out of corporate activities.

The Directors are encouraged to enroll in relevant professional
development programme to ensure that they are aware of their
responsibilities under the legal and regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company. During the Year, the Company arranged
training on compliance of the GEM Listing Rules, to the Directors
and senior management for continuous professional development
of their knowledge and skills in performance of their functions. The
Company Secretary maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year are
as follows:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BIEESE

Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George DL
Independent Non-executive Directors MBI FHITESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEKEL

Mr. Tam Wing Kin LSS

Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex ISIESCS

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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Independent Non-executive Directors

In order to protect the interest of the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), the Company appointed three Independent
Non-executive Directors with relevant and sufficient experience and
qualification to perform their duties. One of the three Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise,
which complies with the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules.
During the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the GEM Listing Rules of 5.06 relating to have at least one-third
in number of its Board members comprising Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive Directors
declared and confirmed with the Company on an annual basis of
their independency with the Group in accordance with Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Board has assessed and concluded
that all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent
in appearance and in substance in view of the definition of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Independent Non-executive Directors do not
hold any office with any connected parties of the Company or have
any financial interests other than those Directors’ remuneration as
disclosed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statement.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, the chairman of the Company, took up
the role of Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ") since 30 June 2014, and
thus there is no segregation of duties during the Year. The Board
has evaluated the current situation of the Group and taken into
account of the experience and past performance of Mr. Lau Chi
Yuen, Joseph, the Board was of the opinion that it was appropriate
and in the best interest of the Company at the present stage for
vesting the roles of the Chairman and the CEO of the Company
in the same person as it helps to facilitates the execution of the
Group's business strategies and maximizes the effectiveness of its
operation. The Board will nevertheless review this structure from
time to time and will consider the segregation of the two roles at
the appropriate time.
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The Chairman of the Company has held one private meeting with
all Independent Non-executive Directors to discuss major events or
issues which incurred during the Year and the Company’s business
plan to be developed in the coming year. The Board believed that
Independent Non-executive Directors could through this private
meeting voice out their concerns on financial aspect after discussed
major events or issues and provided constructive advice on the
direction of the Company's future development.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND RETIREMENT

The procedures of appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors are published in the Articles of the Company. The
procedures for shareholders to propose any person to become a
Director of the Company are published on the Company’s website.

Independent Non-executive Directors were not appointed for
specific terms, subject to re-election. Every Director is subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung
Chan Man, Alex shall retire at the AGM. All the retiring Directors,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors of the Company have complied with the required
standard of dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors adopted by the Company throughout the
Year.

The Company has adopted the same code of conduct for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the code of conduct by the
relevant employees was noted by the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Company established Compensation Committee with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with its authority and
duties in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules. As at the date
of this report, the Compensation Committee comprises a majority
members of Independent Non-executive Directors.

At 30 June 2015, the Compensation Committee comprised three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John,
Mr. Tam Wing Kin, Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Compensation Committee proposed to the Chairman relating
to the remuneration of Executive Directors. The Compensation
Committee also recommended to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration.

The Director’s fee payable to him is determined by making reference
to his duties and responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing
market conditions, as approved by the Board in accordance with
the Company’s remuneration policy pursuant to the authority given
by the Shareholders. No Director has taken part in setting his own
remuneration. Meetings of the Compensation Committee shall be
held at least once a year.

The Compensation Committee held 1 meeting during the Year.
Details of the attendance of the Compensation Committee
meetings are as follows:

Committee members ZE8RE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BT RSEE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BERRESTA
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex it 3 &t

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Compensation
Committee to review the Group’s term of reference for the
Compensation Committee.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee in
2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on nominations, appointment of
Directors and Board succession. The Nomination Committee selects
candidates for directorship with reference to the board diversity
policy and the candidate’s professional knowledge, industry
experience, personal ethics and integrity, and time commitments.
During the selection process, the Nomination Committee may
consider referrals or engage external recruitments professionals
when necessary.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Policy”) in August
2013 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.
In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee of the Company will monitor the
implementation of this Policy and will from time to time review this
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee comprises at least three members, the
majority of whom shall be Independent Non-executive Directors.
The current members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Lau
Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is
the Chairman of the Committee. Meetings of the Nomination
Committee shall be held at least once a year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE RE

The Nomination Committee held 1 meeting during the Year. Details
of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting is as
follows:

Committee members ZEERE
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph /ERESE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FEHEKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin BaREE A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex TSR

During the Year, there was one meeting held by the Nomination
Committee to review the size and composition of the Board and the
Group's term of reference for the Nomination Committee.

FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Company established a Finance Committee with written terms
of reference to review and approve banking facilities to be granted
or issued by the Company, provision of corporate guarantees by
the Company for its subsidiaries and opening of bank or securities
related accounts. The Finance Committee comprises at least three
members. The current members of the Finance Committee are Mr.
Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph, Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing
Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex. Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex is the
Chairman of the Committee.

The Finance Committee held 2 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Finance Committee meeting is as follows:

Committee members ZEEREB
Mr. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph AEREE
Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXBEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin Bt
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex IR
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee. The primary duties
of the Audit Committee is to communicate with the management
of the Company from time to time, including but not limited to
review the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Company, the effectiveness of its internal control systems, the
quarterly, interim and annual results of the Company. The Audit
Committee is also responsible for considering the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor and reviewing
the impairment to its independency with any non-audit services
performed by the external auditor.

As at the date of this report, the members of Audit Committee,
which are all Independent Non-executive Directors, are Dr. Lee
Chung Mong, John, Mr. Tam Wing Kin and Mr. Fung Chan Man,
Alex. Mr. Tam Wing Kin is the Chairman of the Committee.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings during the Year. Details of
the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

KE

Committee members ZE®

Dr. Lee Chung Mong, John FHXKEL
Mr. Tam Wing Kin B A
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex SN e

During the Year, there were six meetings held by the Audit
Committee (i) to review the Company's audited annual results for
the financial year ended 30 June 2014, unaudited first quarterly
results for the three months ended 30 September 2014, unaudited
interim results for the six months ended 31 December 2014 and
unaudited third quarterly results for the nine months ended 31
March 2015; (ii) to review the Group's internal control system;
and (iii) to review the Group’s term of reference for the Audit
Committee.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the total fee paid/payable in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the Company'’s external auditor is
set out below:

Types of services AR 7% 1R 4R
Audit services EZHRTE
Taxation fee 5 & A
Non-audit services IETZRTE

Total st

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary has been a full time employee who has
knowledge of the Company's affair. The Company Secretary of the
Company is Ms. Chan Hiu Kwan, who is engaged and appointed by
the Board on 3 August 2011. For the Year, the Company Secretary
of the Company confirmed that she has taken no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training.

INTERNAL CONTROL REVIEW AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Proper internal controls not only facilitate the effectiveness
and efficiency of operations, ensure compliance with laws and
regulations, but most importantly, help to manage risk exposure of
the Company. The Company is committed to the risk identification,
risk assessment, evaluation of internal control system and
monitoring of remediation plan to control deficiencies. The Audit
Committee has met with the management of the Company on a
regular basis to review the existing internal control practice.

During the Year, the Board considers that the system of internal
control for the Group is adequate and effective.
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At 38 B iR

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced assessment
of the Group’s performance and prospects. It is also responsible for
preparing financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group's financial position on a going concern basis and other price-
sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to
discharge these responsibilities.

The responsibilities of the auditor to the shareholders are set out in
the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 53 and 54.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Procedure for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Company’s Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for put forward a proposal at a Shareholders’
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose
resolutions at general meetings under the Company’s Articles or
the Cayman Islands Companies Law. As regard to the procedure
for proposing a person for election as a Director, please refer to
the procedures made available under the “Corporate Information”
section (Procedures to propose director) of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the Board in

writing though the Company Secretary of the Company’s website
at www.luxey.com.hk.

Address: Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,
1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Telephone:  (852) 2520 6020

Fax: (852) 2520 6086

Email: admin@luxey.com.hk

The Company Secretary of the Company shall forward the
Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board, where appropriate to answer
the Shareholders’ questions.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents for the Year.
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At 38 B iR

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information
to Shareholders in a timely manner. The Company also recognises
that people other than Shareholders, such as potential investors
and the investment community generally may have an interest in
information about the Company. Annual, quarterly and interim
reports offer comprehensive operational and financial performance
information to Shareholders and the AGM provides a forum for
Shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the AGM as an important event and all Directors,
senior management and external auditor make an effort to attend
the AGM of the Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders are given a minimum of 20 clear days and minimum
of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the AGM
of the Company. The Company supports the CG Code's principle
to encourage Shareholders’ participation. The Company has also
complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under
the GEM Listing Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and
the rights of Shareholders to demand a poll included in circulars
to Shareholders dispatched by the Company and explained by
the chairman of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions
proposed at general meeting are voted separately. The results of the
poll was published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.

The Company has maintained a corporate website
(www.luxey.com.hk) as a channel to promote effective corporate
communication with the investors and the general public. The
website is used to disseminate Company announcements, circulars,
Shareholder information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information in an electronic format on a timely basis.

The Shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly to
ensure effectiveness and compliance with the current regulatory
and other requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

RSM

Audit - Tax - Advisory

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
LUXEY INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Luxey International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 55 to 174, which comprise the consolidated and Company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2015, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B S5 % B

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 30 June 2015, and of the Group's results and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RSM Nelson Wheeler
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

24 September 2015
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

22 a2
REeEER
For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

Continuing operations
Turnover
Cost of sales and service rendered

Gross profit

Other income
Impairment of goodwill
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate
Share of losses of an associate

Loss before tax
Income tax credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operation
Loss for the year from discontinued operation

Loss for the year
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Note
Hrit

22

11
12
24

13

15

2015 2014
—E-1f “E-mE
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
BETT BEFT
121,251 96,644
(98,923) (83,628)
22,328 13,016
7,256 7,999
(282,304) (65,185)
(1,824) (3,522)
(37,824) (39,259)
(292,368) (86,951)
(4,296) (2,348)
61,628 -
(8,070) (870)
(243,106) (90,169)
181 209
(242,925) (89,960)
(9,255) (26,141)
(252,180) (116,101)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

w5 AR £ R

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation

Loss attributable to owners of
the Company

Non-controlling interests
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operation

Loss attributable to non-controlling
interests

Loss per share
From continuing and discontinued
operations
- basic

— diluted

From continuing operations
- basic

- diluted

THATRELR:

RRBEAA
REBBEREEHLBE
REERIEZEHBE
KARRBEAEEER

SRR
REHBERZZHBR
REERIEEXHZER

RS ERER

BRER
REFERERLEEEH

-&EX

-5

REFELERH
—&K

-8
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Note
Hrit

17

19(a)

19(a)

19b)

19b)

2015 2014
—E-1E “E-E
HKS$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT
(241,664) (86,784)
(3,780) (17,607)
(245,444) (104,391)
(1,261) (3,176)
(5,475) (8,534)
(6,736) (11,710)
(252,180) (116,101)
(Restated)
(m&E5))
HK(4.977) cents {1 HK(2.117) cents &l
HK(4.977) cents 1l HK(2.117) cents &l
HK(4.900) cents 11 HK(1.760) cents &1l
HK(4.900) cents 11 HK(1.760) cents &1l




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income:

tem that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

ltems that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of available-for-
sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustments for

amounts transferred to profit or loss
of available-for-sale financial assets

— Disposal
— Impairment losses

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for
the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

o fH R H

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

Note
HtaE

FREE

E@éﬁ%é'
CENDEEBm A -

EfYE BEERBELEZ
Pk

AJREERT 7R 2B 2 HA -

BMEIRINER 2 B A E R

At ESREEL
NFEZS
AHEESREEZ
EEERG ML
B0 BHE
—hE
—REEE

BRERFEARMEEKE
20

FAZHEKEAE

TH AL

ZA/NSIE PN
ISy

fib % i WY 2R

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

2015 2014
—B2-I1fF —E—mEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
(252,180) (116,101)
1,216 568

- 4

(4,078) 88

443 -

4,078 -

443 92

1,659 660
(250,521) (115,441)
(243,785) (103,731)
(6,736) (11,710)
(250,521) (115,441)

S

BE () ARATHE
E X
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B IR DR

At 30 June 2015 R-E—HENA=4+H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Goodwill

Investment in an associate
Available-for-sale financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Pledged bank deposits
Bank and cash balances

Non-current assets held for sale

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary

Employee benefit obligations

Current tax liabilities

Liabilities directly associated with
non-current assets held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

FRBEE
RN S
[k
R—HEBERRZRE
A ESREE
ELTRIBEE

RBEE

A
JEWE 5 J A A AR R
EHEMIRITIFR
RITMRER

FHEHEZIFRBEE

hEBAE

e E 5 M HE IR
ke —REHEBARZ
—BIFERBRZER

EE®AEL
BIEIRIE B (E

B EHEZIERDEE
HEHABZAE

RBEERE
EERERRBDAR

0 5 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

Note
HtaE

21
22
24
25
33

26
27
28
28

38

29

30
31

38

2015 2014
—EB-AF —E-mEF
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BETFT JBHET T
19,641 4,455
138,964 359,811
- 17,130

2,998 10,506
412 -
162,015 391,902
6,664 7,810
7,364 14,969
641 165
71,773 38,214
86,442 61,158

- 94,756

86,442 155,914
18,795 25,817
10,000 -
6,444 5,378
6,946 5,516
42,185 36,711

- 74,663

42,185 111,374
44,257 44,540
206,272 436,442




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINAN CIAL POSITION
el R RN

At 30 June 2015 ﬁéfg AFNA=FH

Non-current liabilities

Promissory notes

Deferred tax liabilities

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves

Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of

the Company

Non-controlling interests

TOTAL EQUITY

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 September 2015

*RBEE
ENRE
EXERBRIE

BEEFE

MR K f# 18
LN
Gk

EAN/NIE RNy

FEIE R ot

BEAE

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

28R
Chairman

E

Note
HtaE

32
33

34
35

BExen—

Lau Chun Fat, George
BER

2015 2014
—B2-I1fF —E—mEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

- 45,703

- 699

- 46,402

206,272 390,040
225,364 412,090
(29,925) (6,596)
195,439 405,494
10,833 (15,454)
206,272 390,040

—HFAA -+ A#E

Executive Director
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B 85 IR DL

At 30 June 2015 R-E—HENA=4+H

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Available-for-sale financial assets

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Due from subsidiaries

Bank and cash balances

Current liabilities
Accruals and other payables
Due to subsidiaries

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Promissory notes

NET ASSETS

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

TOTAL EQUITY

HRBEE
KRB RE 2 RE
A ESREE

REBEE
BN S K E A AR

FE Y B B 1 B R IR
RITNRBESER

hREEE
FEETE A R E M BT RR R
FEAIPH /B A B FRIA

REBEEFE
EERERRBDAR

FRBEE
ANRE

BEERE
MR A K feé 4
(LN

Gk
A

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 September 2015

Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph

28=
Chairman
TE
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Note
HtaE

23
25

27
23
28

29
23

32

34
35

Lau Chun Fat, George
B3

2015 2014
—2-1HF —FmF
HK$000 HK$°000
BETFRT BT
153,046 381,609
- 10,506
153,046 392,115
292 956
4,469 61,438
12,593 20,197
17,354 82,591
2,122 2,014
5,354 18,249
7,476 20,263
9,878 62,328
162,924 454,443
- 45,703
162,924 408,740
225,364 412,090
(62,440) (3,350)
162,924 408,740

Executive Director

HITEF

BEEgRN _T-RAFNAA-THBEHE



At1July 2013

Total comprehensive income and changes

in equity for the year

At30June 2014 and 1 July 2014

Total comprehensive income for the year
Capital reorganisation (note 34(b))
Settlement of promissory notes (note 34(c))
Business combination (note 373))

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 371))
Purchase of non-controlling interests

(note 371¢)
Changes in equity for the year

At30 June 2015

RZE-=Etf-A
ERAENEREREDEE

R-F-MERAZTER
T-mF

tA-H

ERRENEEE
RREA (H348)
%E&TTEWHWW
EBAN (HH76)
LERBAF (Hitny)
BEFERER (Hi370)

ERiEsE

R-B-RERA=1A

For the year ended 30 June 2015 &= — 2

Attributable to owners of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
JBe R BE 45 5% B &5 O i

E— A FNA=FHIFFE

FRAREAER
Plant and
machinery Capital  Investment Non-
Share Share  Translation  revaluation  redemption  revaluation  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
BERBE

e Rita® EXRR Efffif AEBERE REERHE 2ithi 8%  FERER REER

(note34)  (note 35cl))  (note 5 (note 35cHi)  (note 35(chiy)  (note 35(c)

(Fa)  (Basson)  (Wasson)  (Bassclin) — (FEsoi)  (W3500)
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000
FEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT EETT BEFT 8T
412,090 612,523 (78) 809 150 (531) (515,738) 509,225 (3,744) 505,481
- - 4 568 - 88 (104,391) (103,731) (11,710) (115,441)
412,090 612,523 (74) 37 150 (443) (620,129) 405,49 (15,454) 390,040
- - - 1216 - w3 (245,444) (243785) (6,736) (250,521)
(236,726) - - - - - 236,726 - - -
50,000 - - - - - - 50,000 - 50,000
- - - - - - - - 11,283 11,283
- - - - - - - - 5470 5470
- - - - - - (16,270) (16,270) 16270 -
(186,726) - - 1216 - w3 (24,988) (210,055) 26,281 (183,768)
225,364 612,523 (14) 2593 150 - (645,117) 195,439 10,833 206,272

HREEE (ER) ARAF

TR TARER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BAaBlemER

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 14)

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Interest income

Amortisation of trademark

Depreciation

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Write off of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of property,
plant and equipment

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets

Impairment of goodwill

(Reversal of allowance)/allowance for
inventories

Allowance for receivables

Reversal of allowance for receivables

Interest on other loan written back

Loss on disposal of available-for sale
financial assets

Gain on deemed disposal of an associate

Share of losses of an associate

Operating loss before working
capital changes

Increase in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
other receivables

Increase in trade and other payables

Increase in provision for employee
benefit obligations

Decrease in deposits received

Cash generated from/(used in) operations

Income tax refunded
Income tax paid

Net cash generated from/(used in)
operating activities

—AFENA=THILFE

Note
k3

BETHoREERE
B 7 RS 1R

%EW@%%

ER IS X (fat14)
FATIER PR

B RS R AR

ﬂ§WA

HEWE BERREER
ik E e

WE - WE KRR RE
AT ESREERE

EERIE
FE (BEER), BE

FE U R R

P LS ok 8 A B )

7% o] BoAth B R B

HET L E S AR BB

BALE—MEENE 2 W
16 —EBE 2 R R B 1R

AL BB SR

s
ﬁaa

TR

%%ﬁ%& L BRFOR L
N
BB 5 A RRFE
BB RA A EREE

Bl eR L
rEm™/ (R ZRE

—~

AREMEH
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REXBHE/ (A2
REFEH
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2015 2014
—E-RF T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFIT BT
(243,106) (90,169)
(10,754) (15,825)
(253,860) (105,994)
5,177 5,592
(946) (1,611)

- 416
2,944 7,678
147 -

73 1,184

- 1,795

4,078 -
282,304 65,185
(802) 418
1,427 3,638
(1,318) (2,076)

- (850)

789 -
(61,628) -
8,070 870
(13,545) (23,755)
(17,249) (226)
12,706 (2,521)
28,822 2,866
1,066 1,055
- (270)
11,800 (22,851)
50 1,514
(1,056) (1,520)
10,794 (22,857)




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
HaBlemaR

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

(Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits

Interest received

Business combination

Disposal of subsidiaries

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale

financial assets

Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and

equipment
Capital contribution to an associate
Loan to an associate

Net cash generated from/(used in)
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

Repayment of finance lease payables
Finance lease charges paid

Bank and other loans raised
Repayment of bank and other loans
Net inception of trust receipt loans
Interest paid

Net cash generated from
financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END

OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank and cash balances
Bank and cash balances included
in non-current assets held for sale

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

Note
Hiat
Eﬁ/ﬁﬁ Ziﬁ.ﬁulbi
BHERIRITER (38m) R
mal NN
EBE0t 37(a)
HER B A 37(b)
HE R ﬁ’% BEEFTSIE

BEYE BB M&E
HEE B KRBTSR

[ —fEE AR E S
BT —RBEQRZEK

REZFBFRE,/ (A2
REFH

REZBZHERE

BEBERERN K
ENRERENY
EEERTREMER
BERAREMER
A
BRFS

MEFDFBZREFHE

REeRALEEER 2EM/
(BD) 8

SMEER BB T
T

FERZBRERAEEEER

RERREEHEEE 2047

RITRIR e ETF
AARBELEZERBEEY
IRIT R &TT 38

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

2015 2014
—E-1F —T—EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BYETT BT T
(210) 128

853 1,611
23,712 -
736 -
10,160 -
(4,075) (4,613)

5 —
(9,000) (9,000)
(10,000) -
12,181 (11,874)
(26) (72)
(1) (8)

- 11,225
(604) (5,494)
6,530 2,435
(666) (2,139)
5,233 5,947
28,208 (28,784)
- (18)

43,565 72,367
71,773 43,565
71,773 38,214

- 5,351

71,773 43,565

e ?’*Hx PR 2 7]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w5 W R A W sl

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with
limited liability. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal place
of business is Unit B, 5th Floor, Hang Cheong Factory Building,
1 Wing Ming Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong.
The Company’s shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA").
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and
Interpretations. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

06 4 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i 6 B R OB RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. RAFITIRKZETEAMKEREEAR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND RRE
REQUIREMENTS

(a) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are
relevant to its operations and effective for its accounting
year beginning on 1 July 2014.

Amendment to HKAS 36, Recoverable amount
disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments reduce the circumstances in which the
recoverable amount of assets or cash-generating units is
required to be disclosed, clarify the disclosures required,
and introduce an explicit requirement to disclose the
discount rate used in determining impairment (or
reversals) where recoverable amount based on fair value
less costs of disposal is determined using a present value
technique. The amendments only affected disclosures
on the recoverable amounts of assets or cash-generating
units determined based on fair value less costs of
disposal.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 (Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle)

This amendment, applicable prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after
1 July 2014, requires any contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability (i.e. non-equity) to
be measured at fair value at each reporting date with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. It had no
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

(a) ERHIREETEBMBREER

RAREE RNEBERABE LS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& W B R A W gk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

—AFNAZTHIFFE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND

REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied new and revised HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
directors anticipate that the new and revised HKFRSs
will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements when they become effective. The Group is in
the process of assessing, where applicable, the potential
effect of all new and revised HKFRSs that will be effective
in future periods but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new and revised HKFRSs would have a
material impact on its results of operations and financial
position.

List of new and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective that are relevant to the Group

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments'

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative?

Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Depreciation and Amortisation?

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-
2014 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 A B Ak WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND
REQUIREMENTS (Continued)

(c) Amendments to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange in April 2015 released revised
Chapter 18 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) in relation to
disclosure of financial information in annual reports that
are applicable for accounting periods ending on or after
31 December 2015, with earlier application permitted.
The Company has not early adopted the amendments.

The Group has assessed the impact of the changes in
the GEM Listing Rules on the consolidated financial
statements in the period of initial application of the GEM
Listing Rules. So far it has concluded that the impact is
unlikely to be significant and only the presentation and
the disclosure of information in the consolidated financial
statements will be affected.
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RIBRE (%)

(0 BXFAIRRESZ EHRAZER]

BN —F—hFABMEERT
‘2R ATBIRRE S EmARR ([
%Wﬁmﬁ%ﬂ%maﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁ
BRZBBERE HETERAR =
—£¢+fﬂ:+—5ﬁ2&%$m
@%%ﬁ’in“F%°$@ﬁﬁﬁ
REXRMAUFER

AEBEEFERIZR EHRAZ &
HREREARIZER EHRAME
HEMBHRRZFE-EESR
EFrRAIEEXN AEFAMBHRE
MZBEMZ2IRBEBEREXETE-

ey e 067



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned
otherwise in the accounting policies below (e.g. certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 30 June. Subsidiaries are entities over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The
Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by
other parties. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 A B Ak WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a) Consolidation (Continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company's share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to
the Company. Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between the non-
controlling shareholders and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

070

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company's ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions
with owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying
amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests
are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position
the investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Business combinations and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination.
The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred
and any contingent consideration. Acquisition-related
costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which
the costs are incurred and the services are received.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the
acquisition are measured at their acquisition-date fair
values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Group's share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the sum of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w5 A B Ak WL Gk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the
consideration transferred in a business combination to
calculate the goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are
initially measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs") or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each
unit or group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the Group at which the
goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
the CGU containing the goodwill is compared to its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use
and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any impairment
is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.
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072

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible,
including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has
significant influence. In assessing whether a potential
voting right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured
at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of
the cost of the investment over the Group's share of the
net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is included
in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence
that the investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c) Associates (Continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss, and its share of the post-acquisition movements in
reserves is recognised in the consolidated reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying amount
of that associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associates have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

074

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at
the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised
in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4, FEGHHE (&)

(d) SMeE8E (&)

(d) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation (iii) #ZEREE IFE %

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation currency
as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items that form
part of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified to consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than plant
and machinery as described below) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during
the period in which they are incurred.

Plant and machinery held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at their revalued amounts, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation, less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed with
sufficient regularity such that the carrying amounts do
not differ materially from those that would be determined
using fair values at the end of each reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation
of such plant and machinery is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in plant and
machinery revaluation reserve, except to the extent that
it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset
previously recognised in profit or loss, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent of the
decrease previously expensed. A decrease in the carrying
amount arising on the revaluation of such plant and
machinery is recognised in profit or loss to the extent
that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the plant and
machinery revaluation reserve relating to a previous
revaluation of that asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation of revalued plant and machinery is
recognised in profit or loss. On the subsequent sale
or retirement of a revalued plant and machinery, the
attributable revaluation surplus remaining in the plant
and machinery revaluation reserve is transferred directly
to accumulated losses.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost or
revalued amounts less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

20% - 50% or
over the lease term,

Leasehold improvements

whichever is shorter
Plant and machinery 20%
Furniture, fixtures and
20% - 50%

20% - 25%

office equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Leases

()

(ii)

078

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group
all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets
are accounted for as finance leases. At the
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is
capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased
asset and the present value of the minimum lease
payments, each determined at the inception of the
lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the statement of financial position as finance
lease payable. Lease payments are apportioned
between the finance charge and the reduction
of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is
allocated to each period during the lease term so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same
as owned assets.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

Trademark

Trademark is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated on
a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 25
years.

Club debenture

Club debenture with indefinite useful life is stated at
cost less any impairment losses. Impairment is reviewed
annually or when there is any indication that the club
debenture has suffered an impairment loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in,
first-out basis for the manufacturing of swimwear and
related garment products, or weighted average basis for
other operations. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. The cost of merchandises comprises all costs
of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and/or the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

w0 W B A WL GE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

4, FESTBE(E)

(9)

(h)

[k

BAS Th IR B AN R, R 5 8 3F OB B 1R
5l B - 3 S50 HL25F fh 51 Al £ A F 53
REMETE -

EES

AERAERFHZEMEFZAA
BRI AREREY R - REETF
0 3R & FTE 55 BURL BB 1R 2 B
R -

Ei=]

r&

15 & 1R pk AN B ] B IR S E R & ARIE
EHYER - RUEX KRB KERZ
BN A ST 50 Y B AT B - s H A 3
AN EETE -’ R
BRNRABERME -BEELIK
FIBEELSERINEE DD AR
EBER (WEA) ERKRARER
BRBEBAAREFE LL:I:H A 0 B
Ktk e 2 H AR AN - Al B IR F(EIZ A
BEBHMEFTEERMGF AR AR
ST E TR ERTE -

FRBIEE () ARAE
R RN

079



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B R A W Rk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(j) Recognition and derecognition of financial

—AFENA=FHIEFE

instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire; the
Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets; or the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on
the assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss
that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w5 B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AFNNA=1HI FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k) Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a
trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an financial
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery of
the financial assets within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss.

The Group classifies its financial assets as available-
for-sale. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
these investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the investment revaluation
reserve, until the investments are disposed of or
there is objective evidence that the investments are
impaired, at which time the cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
are reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Interest
calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are
recognised in profit or loss.

Investments in equity instruments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, are measured at cost less
impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

(m)

(n)

082

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
Bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued
operations

Non-current assets or disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as
met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
or disposal group is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. The Group must be committed to the
sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition
as a completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n) Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued

operations (Continued)

Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of the asset’s or
disposal group’s previous carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group
(i.e. the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned
or to be abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the assets or disposal group constituting
the discontinued operation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

(r)

(s)

084

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set
out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(t)

Revenue from the sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the customers.

On-line shopping, advertising and media related service
income is recognised when the service is rendered.

Consultancy fee income, commission income and
alteration income is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Compensation income, distribution right fee income
and participation fee income is recognised on an accrual
basis in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
agreement.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(t) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

086

Pension obligations

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The Group's
contributions to the MPF Scheme are calculated at
5% of the salaries and wages subject to a monthly
maximum amount of HK$1,500 per employee and
vest fully with employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC"”) are members of a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
employees of the Group. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the central pension scheme
is to meet the required contributions under the
scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Borrowing costs

(v)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B o W B R A W gk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because of items of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax
credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except when it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(x) Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life
or that are not yet available for use are reviewed for
impairment annually and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate the carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

The carrying amounts of other non-financial assets
are reviewed at each reporting date for indications
of impairment and where an asset is impaired, it is
written down as an expense through the consolidated
statement of profit or loss to its estimated recoverable
amount unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated
as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets. If this is
the case, recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable
amount is the higher of value in use and the fair value
less costs of disposal of the individual asset or the cash-
generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present
values are computed using pre-tax discount rates that
reflect the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset/cash-generating unit whose impairment is being
measured.

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to
the extent that they reverse the impairment unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Impairment of financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses
whether its financial assets are impaired, based on
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition, the estimated
future cash flows of the (group of) financial asset(s) have
been affected.

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost is considered also to be objective evidence
of impairment.

In addition, for trade receivables that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, the Group assesses them
collectively for impairment, based on the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
delayed payments in the portfolio, observable changes
in economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables, etc.

Only for trade receivables, the carrying amount is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss.

For all other financial assets, the carrying amount is
directly reduced by the impairment loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(2)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if the
amount of the impairment loss decreases in a subsequent
period and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed (either
directly or by adjusting the allowance account for trade
receivables) through profit or loss. However, the reversal
must not result in a carrying amount that exceeds what
the amortised cost of the financial asset would have been
had the impairment not been recognised at the date the
impairment is reversed.

For available-for-sale debt securities, impairment
losses are subsequently reversed through profit or
loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the recognition of the impairment loss. In respect of
available-for-sale equity securities, an increase in fair value
subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation
reserve; impairment losses are not reversed through profit
or loss.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(B)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is @ member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group. If
the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (A); or

A person identified in (A)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

4, FESTBE(E)

(2) BEAL(E)

(B)

S

ﬁTATWEHMﬁEﬂ
REBEE

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

HEBRAANERN %
ZREAR(DEBAF.

0SNG S EES )= PNCIE
ItEBEE)
—HEBAS —BERNOBE
ARKABLE (RE—F
BRKE AR ZEEE T
BARZBEATRALE
%)

-
—E¥
—Hf’mﬁ'ﬂﬁféﬁﬂ

ERRASEREREES
RECEEMNERFREL
) B RGBT 81 o fim AN 52 (B
Ay ERZE REED
H) & X IR B AN SR [ A R 2

0 }
knl@

B (AFTERIATHE K
\H&ﬂ B

><l‘

RADFEBIATHEESR
A

EAVESBEZER (3
ERNERAREEEEE

W%O

Be () ARAHE

093

—IARAER



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

(ab) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group's position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after
the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

(a) Consolidation of entity with less than 50% equity
interest holding

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the
equity interest in Ricotex Industrial Company Limited
("Ricotex”), Ricotex is treated as a subsidiary because the
Group is able to control the relevant activities of Ricotex
as a result of the shareholders’ agreement between the
Group and other shareholders of Ricotex.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group's
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

& o W B R A W gk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AFNNA=1+HILFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 30 June 2015 was approximately HK$19,641,000

(2014: HK$4,455,000).

(b) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. During the year, approximately HK$181,000
(2014: HK$209,000) of income tax was credited to profit
or loss based on the estimated loss from continuing

operations.

(c) Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in
use calculation requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating
unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. The carrying amount of goodwill
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$138,964,000 (2014: HK$359,811,000) after an
impairment loss of approximately HK$282,304,000
(2014: HK$65,185,000) was recognised during the year.
Details of the impairment loss calculation are provided in
note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. ERHERETEMLE (&)
(Continued)
A TEEENEZERR (Z)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts (d) RERBEER

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts,
in particular of a loss event, requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the actual result is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the trade and other receivables and
doubtful debt expenses in the year in which such estimate
has been changed.

As at 30 June 2015, accumulated impairment loss for
bad and doubtful debts amounted to approximately
HK$2,258,000 (2014: HK$2,252,000).

(e) Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based
on the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back in
the period in which such estimate has been changed.
Reversal of allowance for slow-moving inventories of
approximately HK$802,000 was made for the year ended
30 June 2015 (2014: allowance of HK$418,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

5.

—AFENA=THIEFE

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(f) Fair values of plant and machinery

The Group appointed an independent professional valuer
to assess the fair values of the plant and machinery.
In determining the fair values, the valuer has utilised a
method of valuation which involves certain estimates. The
directors have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. The fair value of plant and machinery
at the end of the reporting period was approximately
HK$11,454,000 (2014: HK$3,103,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United
States dollars and Renminbi (“RMB"”) which are the
functional currencies of the principal operating entities of
the Group. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Credit risk

(9]

The carrying amount of the bank and cash balances
including pledged bank deposits, available-for-sale
financial assets and trade and other receivables included
in the statement of financial position represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group's financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on bank and cash balances is limited
because the counterparties are banks with high credit-
ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its
trade and other receivables. In order to minimise credit
risk, the directors review the recoverable amount of
each individual debt regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts.
In this regard, the directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

6. MEEKRER£)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (o) Feps£EMK (&)
The following table shows the remaining contractual TRETAEERHRERARZERE
maturity at the end of the reporting period of the Group's BERERFRE DIZARERBESNN
financial liabilities based on undiscounted cash flows and ERANEEAEAEERNST BB
the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to B TRBEMNERASRENE -
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows.
Specifically, for borrowings which contain a repayment BFRlIZ e skiRy
on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks’ >i1§2§21€§%¥21%%ﬁﬁ s N
sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow BRI EREIEEAEFINREAH
based on the earliest period in which the entity can be (B ERAFTE AR ER 2K
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their AN EEE ) Zfﬁ TMEFTH -
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate
effect.
Total
Less than Between Between undiscounted
On demand 1year 1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BRER
EER PR-F —ZWE —ERE REeRE
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BETFT BEFT
At 30 June 2015 —Z-nFXA=1H
Trade and other payables ENE S REMER - 18,058 - - 18,058
Loan from a non-controling RE—RMBARZ—%
shareholder of a subsidiary FERBRER 10,000 - - - 10,000
10,000 18,058 - - 28,058
At 30 June 2014 —Z-WEXA=TH
Trade and other payables FENE S REMER - 44,151 - - 44,151
Promissory notes ENEE - - 50,000 - 50,000
Finance lease payables BERERNHE - 80 6 - 86
Borrowings subject to REEXRERER
a repayment on EE
demand clause 19,330 - - - 19,330
Other loans HiER - 19,350 10,008 - 29,358
19,330 63,581 60,014 - 142,925
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(9]

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarised the maturity analysis
of borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements as at 30 June 2014. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors did not consider
that it was probable that the banks would exercise
their discretion to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believed that such borrowings would be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements.

Less than
1 year

PR-F
HK$ 000
EETT

At 30 June 2014 RZZE—M4E

~A=TH

17,310

6. 9

(o)

BEBRER (&)
RBESEE (F)

TERBMEEREREERKZEER
REEHA-ZT-—NFA=1THZ
EXmEAE cZEERRPAEZE
HIA DT - BB A KB 2 B A0 -
EERRMITTIAATRETEEBRBR
ERARER-EFHE FREE
AR IR B 3R 10 o P 8 2 & SRS TR R (B

5& o
Total
Between Between undiscounted
1and 2 years 2 and 5 years cash flows
BARER
—EmF —ZEF RERE
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
EETT EETT EETT
1,482 1,242 20,034

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk arises from its
pledged bank deposits and loan from a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary. These deposits and loan bear
interest at variable rates varied with the then prevailing
market condition.

Except as stated above, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities,
the Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. BIKEKMER (&)
(e) Categories of financial instruments (e) TR TR ZER
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
Financial assets: SREE:
Loans and receivables (including ERRERER (BERSE
cash and cash equivalents) EREEEER) 79,492 94,575
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEEsRHEE 2,998 10,506
Financial liabilities: cHaE:
Financial liabilities at B HK AT EZ
amortised cost SERAE 28,058 136,184
(f) Fair values f AFE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets REBRGEVMBRAKRFATZ
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated mEEMEREERAEREREZEN
statement of financial position approximate their NERE -

respective fair values.
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an

asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date. The

following disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair

value hierarchy that categorises into three levels the inputs to

valuation techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs:

Level 2 inputs:

Level 3 inputs:

quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date.

inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers

out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or

change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AT EH &

RPEERFTERHZMSE2EE ZRZ
EFXSH gHEEEMPEIZ B
HREBEAXNZEBR - U TRTVENE
BEIRAKARGFTERAFEZEHENDE
N R="EWABREZATERBEL:

FIEBABE: AKE AN E B
BZHEREEXEER
BTG 2 WE (KE
FE) o

E2BBABIE: BRE1EMEBRZIHRE
S EESRRBEZER
AEEABREH A
e

FIFWARIE: BEXRBZAAER
W AN BUE -

AEBZBRERRNENHHIERNE B ERE

BREAERATA=2B2E8AREH-

FRBIEE () ARAE

TR TARER 103



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

—AFENA=THIEFE

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DAVEFE(E)
(a) Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 30 June @ ARTFEERREER_ZT—HF A
2015: “THZEBEWBENT
Fair value measurements using: Total
AFEFERA: CH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2015
Description F1E F1E F28 $3E —T-1F
HK$000 HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Recurring fair value measurements: &EE#ALEHE:
Available-for-sale financial assets ARHESREE
Unlisted equity securities I LMRAER - - 2,998 2,998
Plant and machinery R[5 K a8 - - 11,454 11,454
Total recurring fair value REMAVEFEEE
measurements - - 14,452 14,452
Fair value measurements using: Total
ATEFERA CH
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2014
Description 5 £1 E2E F3E C—E-IF
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BT BETT
Recurring fair value measurements: ZEEH A FEE:
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHESRERE
Listed debt securities THEBES 10,506 - - 10,506
Plant and machinery TR I 23 - - 3,103 3,103
Total recurring fair value KEMAVEIEAE
measurements 10,506 - 3,103 13,609
Total non-recurring fair value FREUNTESE
measurements: B
Disposal group held for sale FELE 2 HEAT - - 20,093 20,093

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the carrying amount of non-
current assets held for sale was written down to its fair
value of approximately HK$94,756,000 and resulting
in a loss of approximately HK$10,142,000, which was
included in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June
2014.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on

level 3:

Description

At beginning of year
Total gains or losses recognised

in profit or loss
in other comprehensive
income

Business combination

Disposals

Reclassification adjustments for
amount transferred to profit
or loss for impairment losses
of available-for-sale financial
assets

Reclassification of remaining
interest from disposal group
held for sale to available-for-
sale financial assets

At end of year

# Include gains or losses for
assets held at the end of
reporting period

e

RNEA]

ERRMEL
BREE
N

REMZEEA

A

HE

HHESREEL
HEBRZCDEE
BHzeBZ
ENNEHE

ek MESARE
&z R
BN BEAH
HESREE

RER

YERRREHREE
REZRESER

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

7. AFVEFEE)
NEIBE AT EAEZEELR:
Available-
for-sale

financial assets

unlisted equity Plantand Disposal group
securities machinery held for sale 2015
AHtHESRE
BEHFL® FEHEZ
RA®E % T2 R 4 28 HEAR —E-1%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
EEF BEF BEF BEFR
- 3,103 20,093 23,196
(4,078) (2,0609) (1,637) (7,784)
(4,078) 1,621 - (2,457)
- 8,799 - 8,799
- - (11,380) (11,380)
4,078 - - 4,078
7,076 - (7,076) -
2,998 11,454 - 14,452
(4,078) (2,069) - (6,147)

FRBIEE () ARAE

TR TARER
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued) 7. DAVEFE(E)
(b) Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on b) UNEIBAFEF=E 2 EE HEK:
level 3: (Continued) (%)
Disposal
Plant and group 2014
machinery held for sale Total
RIEHEZ — o4
Description 1B TR = K 1 2% H & 487 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BT BT T BT T
At beginning of year REH] 3,749 - 3,749
Total gains or losses recognised E ##52 2 Uk z5 2k
BEes
in profit or loss JiNEi=Eid (1,452) (10,142) (11,594)
in other comprehensive A E A 2 E R A
income 784 - 784
Purchases BE 19 - 19
Exchange differences MEHEE 3 - 3
Transfers into level 3 EEEEIE - 30,235 30,235
At end of year REF 3,103 20,093 23,196
® Include gains or losses for WEERRERREE
assets held at the end of BEZWRLERE
reporting period (1,452) (10,142) (11,594)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on
level 3: (Continued)

The total gains recognised in other comprehensive
income are presented in surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

The total losses recognised in profit or loss including those
for assets held at end of reporting period is presented
in cost of sales and service rendered and loss for the
year from discontinued operation in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 30 June 2015:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of
Directors at least twice a year.

For level 3 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

w0 W B A WL GE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

7. DFEFE(E)

(b)

NEIBRFEFEZEEYK:
(#&)

A E At 2 WA FERR 2 W 2 AR BRI AR
aEREMEMEERERTRDE
Mg EHBRET -

RBERRERBRT A ZEEEE
(BRERAKEEZER) DRGEEBE
RAZHERARERE ZKARE
RUIEREXBCFREBRAZS-

AEBEERZEERFIR -F—
FRAZTARFEFEFERZMHE
BRI N ABUR 2 WEE

AEBMBRERAENMHERE B
B zcEERBEZAFEE &
REIBRAVEFE -MBEENZLF
NP EFEERAEFERSE UK
RELEZSARGERFRERSE
FEDBITMARE -

MFEIBENFEFEMS AKE—
&%%Fﬂ%%Tﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁ%
HEKEZINEEEZEFETARMG
B

AR 2 7]

eSS ?’“Hx
E KX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

7. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(@

—AFENA=THIEFE

7. DFEE(E)

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group (@]
and valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value

measurements at 30 June 2015: (Continued)

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value

measurements are mainly as below:

Description
B fEERM

Private equity investments Market comparable

classified as available-for- approach
sale financial assets
NPERAHHESREBEEY MHAUELERE

MAERRE

Fair market value of plant
and machinery
BB B 282 AF A

approach

MISHLEERKAER A

Za b

Valuation technique

Combination of market
comparable approach
and cost replacement

Unobservable inputs
FABEGA8E

Average price book multiple

FHERREGEH

Average price sales multiple

FHERHBERHR

Book value

HEE

Annual sales

FHER

Discount for lack of

marketability

Bz S B TE

Estimated useful life

(EEEIEEREEa

Adjusting factor

RHERER

During the two years, there were no changes in the

valuation techniques used.

1 0 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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AEEFERzHEEREF RN T —
FARNA=ZTHRAFEETERZMA
BERMEBABBRZKE: (&)

FIB R HETEMER 2EXTAE
R ABIBEBT 2NN

Effect on

fair value

for increase

of inputs

2 s A i
BE LATEzZE

Value

0.6745 Increase

0.6745 &0

0.7898 Increase
0.7898

HK$49,644,000 Increase
B %49,644,0007T 1N

HK$41,135,000 Increase
741,135,000 10

29.75% Decrease

29.75% @A
10 to 14 years Increase

(2014:
11 to 14 years)

10F 2145 B0
(ZT—mEF:
MNER145F)

74% 10 100%

(2014

75% to 100%)

74%ZE100% 10
(ZZE—MF:75%
%=100% )

Increase

B P 3 48 B4R AR 2 F A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

TURNOVER 8. EXH
The Group's turnover which represents sales of goods to AEEzEER AHEP2EMmEER
customers and revenue from provision of on-line shopping, REGEEY EERERBEBRSE 2
advertising and media related services are as follows: AT
2015 2014
—B-RF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sales of goods EmiEE 154,540 265,555
On-line shopping, advertising and R EREY - BERERAERS
media related services income A 3,114 3,322
157,654 268,877
Representing: KA
Continuing operations FBICE TS 121,251 96,644
Discontinued operation (trading ERIEREEB (EER
and retail of apparel and related TE R RARBER )
accessories) (note 14) (Hat14) 36,403 172,233
157,654 268,877
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

OTHER INCOME 9. Hfiz
2015 2014
—E-hF — e
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Alteration income KW A 41 223
Commission income (i ON 9 202
Compensation income BEEA - 984
Consultancy fee income BB A 2,476 7,779
Distribution right fee income T EEREE WA 696 2,537
Design fee income RETBBA 390 320
Interest income B WA 946 1,611
Interest on other loan written back B e RS - 850
Participation fee income Qﬁﬁig’uﬁ)\ 331 1,080
Reversal of allowance for receivables JFE L B R 45 B o) 1,318 2,076
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEREERD 1,425 -
Reversal of provision for employee EERMNEERERE
benefit obligation 3 121
Government grants (note) BT B (M132) 3,338 1,972
Sundry income HMETE A 538 2,130
11,511 21,885
Representing: PY=
Continuing operations FEICE T 7,256 7,999
Discontinued operation (note 14) BRI EETE (Hat14) 4,255 13,886
11,511 21,885
Note: Government grants were received as refund of value-added tax and et BUWCERER AT B RIS ER R OB 2R

export duty. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

attached to the grants.

1§ o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has three reportable segments as follows:

Swimwear and

Manufacturing and trading
garment of swimwear and
garment products

Apparel and related

Trading and retail of apparel
accessories and related accessories
(discontinued operation)

On-line shopping and

Provision of on-line shopping,
advertising advertising and media related

services

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 4 to the financial statements.
Segment profits or losses do not include other income, finance
costs, impairment of goodwill and corporate administrative
and other operating expenses. Segment assets do not include
available-for-sale financial assets, club debenture, goodwill
and other assets for general administrative use. Segment
liabilities do not include promissory notes and other liabilities
for general administrative use.

10. D EER

TOIRAEE =B REDH:

KERRE - £ERBEEXERRE
EEDD
R KA — BEENMTEREHKAER
[SAEs Foft (BRRIEEE:
%)
mEBEYE - REKLEBY EBEER
E& IR RE AR RE AR

AREE Z A HE oAb e TR E m &R
BZREMEEBECL -HRSBREBEKR
AR Z &AM BT i5RES Rty R E
Ee

=D

B

i3
el

TR L 745 S PR R 4 P
° 3 B M) 3l B 1R I B HE E A UK
ot Eﬁ“ﬁzﬁ EERE R RTITH R E M
LEM-DHMEEL TERARLES
@Eéﬁ‘@ﬁﬁ%% BE - REME—RTT
BiERzEE - DRFABELTBREANR
BEREMH-RTBRERZEE-

E‘\ Dt

HQ\
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE
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10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 2 HBER (#&)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, ARES AR EEREBZEBER:
assets and liabilities:
Apparel
and related
Swimwear accessories On-line
and (Discontinued  shopping and
garment operation) advertising Total
R &5 R
MR
(B&LE BEBIK
KERRE REEK) B% @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
JBEFIT BEFT BETFT BT
Year ended 30 June 2015 BEZ-Z-1F
ANA=ZTHLEE
Revenue from external customers R ENREF 2 U 118,137 36,403 3,114 157,654
Segment profit/(loss) DEER/ (BR) 57,077 (14,128) (2,673) 40,276
Depreciation e 2,262 1,358 284 3,904
Gain on deemed disposal of an RIEHE—ABE A7
associate g 61,628 - - 61,628
Share of losses of an associate E§1£ —RlE AR EER 8,070 - - 8,070
Income tax expense/(credit) fEHER,/ () 635 - (816) (181)
Additions to segment mﬁn HERBEE
non-current assets 16,320 2,141 825 19,286
As at 30 June 2015 RZZE-RFXA=1H
Segment assets NEHEE 90,616 - 1,689 92,305
Segment liabilities AR 38,634 - 845 39,479
Year ended 30 June 2014 BE-ZE-MF
ANA=ZTHLEE
Revenue from external customers REIRRP 2 Mz 93,322 172,233 3,322 268,877
Segment loss DEER (7,799) (36,784) (6,890) (51,473)
Depreciation e 1,604 5,191 422 7,217
Share of losses of an associate [ —EE 2R aEE 870 - - 870
Income tax (credit)/expense Frias (%) /&R (209) 174 - (35)
Additions to segment non-current  AEB A BIEREBEE
assets 148 3,896 569 4,613
As at 30 June 2014 R-E-MEAA=TH
Segment assets DEEE 57,901 94,550 1,916 154,367
Segment liabilities D EE 33,190 74,663 1,435 109,288
Investment in an associate R—REEeLRRE 17,130 - - 17,130




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

10. ZERER (&)

Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or loss:

Revenue

Total revenue of reportable segments

Elimination of discontinued operation
(note 14)

Consolidated revenue from continuing
operations

Profit or loss

Total profit or loss of reportable segments

Impairment of goodwill

Other profit or loss

Elimination of discontinued operation
(note 14)

Consolidated loss for the year from
continuing operations

g

A RE D RS RE

BB RIEEEER
(Kiat14)

KERBBREEBTZ

e MR

R & 8

Al RS D EEmRE

ERE

H i i FI| Sk &5 18

KRB R IEEEET
(Kiat14)

KAEFBEREEHZFNR

rEEE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

#g AR

DR ERER 2R

2015 2014
—E-HF —mF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETT BT
157,654 268,877
(36,403) (172,233)

121,251 96,644
40,276 (51,473)
(282,304) (65,185)
(10,152) 557

9,255 26,141
(242,925) (89,960)

HARBEE (BR) HRAT
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 EBER (&)
Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: PTHEEREBZHE:
2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments AmESPEEMLE 92,305 154,367
Goodwill BES 138,964 359,811
Available-for-sale financial assets AR EcREE 2,998 10,506
Club debenture 2R iE S - 205
Other assets Hih&E 14,190 22,927
Consolidated total assets MAEEBEEE 248,457 547,816
Liabilities =L
Total liabilities of reportable segments mENHEBEEE 39,479 109,288
Promissory notes ZEENES: - 45,703
Other liabilities HiaE 2,706 2,785
Consolidated total liabilities meEaERE 42,185 157,776
Apart from the above, the totals of other material items BrEuiEN RO EREE s HMEXR
disclosed in the segment information are the same as the IH B EERESS BERRE-

consolidated totals.

1 1 4 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 10. 7 HER (&)
Geographical information: HWEER :
The Group's revenue from external customers by location of REEREIATEP 2 Hm (REFE
the customers and information about its non-current assets by o) REFERBEEER (IREEME D
location of assets are detailed below: )T
Revenue Non-current assets
g FRBEE
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-ff —T-mEF —E-IF —T-mEF
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
BEFT JBETFT BEFT JBETFT
Hong Kong B 37,489 171,209 141,761 377,991
PRC except HongKong B (BB KRR
and Macau - 2,925 2,456 3,405
Kingdom of Cambodia ~ ®HET - - 14,800 -
United Kingdom HE 25,916 23,341 - -
Spain [iilis 20,803 11,406 - -
Sweden g 18,084 16,985 - -
Macau RF 1,206 626 - -
United States of America %[ 5,197 16,909 - -
Netherlands wH 5,829 5,509 - -
Israel e 4,970 4,285 - -
France T 832 475 - -
Denmark FE 2,732 966 - -
Ireland ERW 21,99 11,220 - -
Canada mnex 9,874 -
Singapore IR - 1,465 - -
Others Hih 2,728 1,556 - -
Discontinued operation B [FIEL K (36,403) (172,233) - -
Consolidated total ReEE 121,251 96,644 159,017 381,396
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B o W B R A W gk

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

10. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

11.

Revenue from major customers:

Swimwear and garment segment
Customer a
Customer b

FINANCE COSTS

Finance lease charges

Interest on bank loans

Interest on promissory notes

Interest on other loans wholly repayable
within five years

Representing:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 174)

—AFENA=THIEFE

10. 2 HEHR (&)

REFEEZF 2WH:
2015 2014
—E-FEF — 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
K EE N R 3t 5 50
ZFa 21,994 -
ZFb 17,791 -
11. B A
2015 2014
—E—-fF — 4
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
ﬁﬂ“%ﬁiﬂzﬁ 1 8
TEFRFE 458 1,593
7¥Kﬁﬁ$ﬁ FLE 4,297 2,348
BRAFREBEEEZ
Ha BB 421 1,643
5,177 5,592
A
HECEER 4,296 2,348
BAR AT (Kt 14) 881 3,244
5,177 5,592

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

1 1 6 Annual Report.2015
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

12. GAIN ON DEEMED DISPOSAL OF AN ASSOCIATE -

RICOTEX

Pursuant to a supplemental agreement (“Supplemental
Agreement”) dated 30 June 2015 entered into between
Ratio Knitting Factory Limited (“Ratio”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company which holds 45% of the issued
share capital of Ricotex, Billions Field Development Limited
and All Full Profit Limited (together holds 55% of the issued
share capital of Ricotex), the maximum number of directors
of Ricotex was increased from 3 to 5 and 3 out of 5 directors
should be nominated by Ratio. A quorum for a meeting was
also increased to at least 3 directors. Board resolution was
passed on the same date to appoint the 2 additional directors
nominated by Ratio.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
obtained control in Ricotex by virtue of the Supplemental
Agreement, and as a result, Ricotex ceased to be an associate
of the Group on 30 June 2015 and became and is accounted
for as a subsidiary of the Company effective from that date.
The Group’s interests in Ricotex were re-measured based on
the fair value of the shares of Ricotex held by the Group on
30 June 2015. Accordingly, a gain on deemed disposal of
approximately HK$61,628,000 was recognised in profit or loss
during the year ended 30 June 2015.

12. BEHE-HBHEQRTD WG -FS

=

RN ERABR DR ([FE] - AA
Az EMBAR ERENEED BT
RAZ45% ) - MEZERAR A R KoKmF|
BERAR (AHBBENSESHITREAZ
55% )R VHBAZE—RAFAAA=1H
ZwnhE ((Mahzl) FeEEEA
HERB=BEINERE EAH 2=
EEEHNETREZ 82 25T ARG
MEZL=FEF-NAEA EFFRBR
BE UNEENBIREBZBIMBES-

$®T§$wﬁa Kﬁlaﬁuﬁﬁ:ﬁ%
MEEzEslE Bk e %_%@—ﬁ
FRAZTBETBAAEBZHBERT
WEHZBRKABARARZHBRARILIES
RARZHBARIARE - AEERFEZEZ
BERUAERR _E—AF,A=1THHN
BHEeEROZ AFEAEESHI=Z-
At - B2 —AF~A=1tHIFE
NRE L& 2 Wz 48 %61,628,0007T 2
PIBRRRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 13. Fi8BLERA (ER)
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT BT T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEAREIE — BB 1S

Provision for the year FABE 1,397 252
Overprovision in prior years BT ERERE - (80)
1,397 172

Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax ~ BNHARH 1B —h B> E 1SR

Provision for the year FARE 33 155
Deferred tax (note 33) EIERIE (H15F33) (1,611) (362)
Income tax credit TSI % (181) (35)
Representing: PY=

Continuing operations RELEET (181) (209)

Discontinued operation (note 14) BRI EER (Kat14) - 174

(181) (35)
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate of 16.5% EBENET DR ER F R 2 (5T R
(2014: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. FIATEE16.5% (ZZT — V04 :16.5% )5t
E o
Tax charges on profits assessable elsewhere have been Hthith @ 2 &R m M A B Ty R AR B
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in EERBREBER ZRITHE  WRIEE M
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, WITER BEREMNGE-

interpretation and practices in respect thereof.

1 1 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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13.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax credit and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits A5

Tax rate is as follows:

Loss before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operation (note 74)

Tax at the domestic income tax rate of
16.5% (2014: 16.5%)

Tax effect of income that is not taxable

Tax effect of expenses that are not
deductible

Tax effect of other temporary differences
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses not
previously recognised

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries

Overprovision in prior years

Income tax credit

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

B A1 518
BT
BRI T (A3214)

BARMPISHE165% (ZF
—F :16.5% 5T E 2 1A
BERRBA ZREFE

PRI AX 2 B8

REREMERFER L
M2
RERTEBEIRBETE
FRABTFEARERZ
MEBEINGETE
BRI TRME &
BEFEBERE

FRiSEi %

w0 W B A WL GE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

13. iSHiER, (E%) (&)

NIRRT Al B B SR A BB
SHEMEBEBZEEK:

2015 2014
—E-AfF — e
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
(243,106) (90,169)
(10,754) (15,825)
(253,860) (105,994)
(41,887) (17,489)
(10,450) (929)
51,763 14,595
(182) 523
1,618 3,321
(1,054) (29)
11 53
- (80)
(181) (35)
HRER

Be () ARAHE
E KX
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

Pursuant to a sale and purchase agreement dated 28 July
2014 entered into between a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Synergy Chain Limited (“Synergy”), and
an independent third party, Synergy disposed of 27.3%
interests in Charmston (Holdings) Limited (“Charmston”),
a company incorporated in Hong Kong, at a consideration
of HK$10,000,000. Charmston was engaged in investment
holding, with its subsidiaries engaged in trading and retail
of apparel and related accessories in Hong Kong. The
disposal was completed on 21 October 2014 and the Group
discontinued its trading and retail of apparel and related
accessories business.

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

Loss of discontinued operation

Write-down of non-current assets held
for sale (note 38)

Gain on disposal of discontinued
operation (note 37(b))

(H1:£38)

(B1:£37(b))

1 2 0 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

ERIEREXRBZER
WORFSEHE ZERBEE

HEDRIEEEER 2 W

14. CRIEEEXEK

BIEA R T 2 2 &M B A F)Synergy Chain
Limited ([Synergy | ) B8 — & @7 55 = 7]
YZHHAZZ—NFEtA=Z+N\HZ
B E % Synergy AR EE % 10,000,000
THERGE (RE)BR AR ([4E])
(—EARBBEFTIMELZRAF]) 227.3%%
o BE N EREERER  HWB AR
EERAEBERTERMIBHARLY -
EFER_T—MOF+A-T+—BREKE
AEEDKIEEEE R TERM RABER
-

KEERIEKEXB 2FREBERI TN

2015 2014
—E-AEF —E-F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
(10,754) (15,999)

- (10,142)

1,499 -
(9,255) (26,141)
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14. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued)

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

The results of the discontinued operation for the period from
1 July 2014 to 21 October 2014, which have been included in

consolidated profit or loss, are as follows:

Turnover (note 8)
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income (note 9)
Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Loss from operations
Finance costs (note 11)

Loss before tax

Income tax expense (note 13)

Loss for the year

BREB (Hi28)
&R

EF
H st (H1at9)
HERMX

THEM

BAFSRAR (M1aE11)

B 75 A B 1B
Fristi &R (it 13)

FRER

During the year, Charmston and its subsidiaries paid
approximately HK$175,000 (2014: HK$1,771,000) in respect
of operating activities, paid approximately HK$1,867,000
(2014: HK$3,895,000) in respect of investing activities and
received approximately HK$5,232,000 (2014: HK$5,700,000)

in respect of financing activities.

14.

ERIEREER (&)

Bt AGEBEEZREZE—NFELH—
AEEE-_Z—W&+A=-+—HIFHEA
ZERIEREEB 2 FEEWT

2015 2014
—E-RfF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
36,403 172,233
(11,387) (54,626)
25,016 117,607
4,255 13,886
(21,015) (75,668)
(18,129) (68,406)
(9,873) (12,581)
(881) (3,244)
(10,754) (15,825)
- (174)
(10,754) (15,999)

RER GEREMBAREREEER
A4 B E175,0000 (T — W& -
#1,771,00070) * ShIR B E BT H B
1,867,000 ( —Z — PO 4F : & %3,895,000
TL) R E B E B U4 B 65,232,000
(=—Z—PO4 : #%5,700,0007T ) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

15. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 15. FREE

The Group's loss for the year is stated after charging/(crediting) AEBEBZFABBEHER (5FA) TFIHE

122

the following: H:
Continuing operations Discontinued operation Total
BESEER BAIEEER @t
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
SR-5F | ZF-RF | ZR-EF [ ZTORF | ZR-1fF | ZTO0F
HKS'000 HKS 000 HK$'000 HKS 000 HK$000 HKS 000
BETFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT EEFT
Auditor's remuneration BEME 800 840 127 400 927 1,240
Cost of inventories sold BHEFEHA 97,248 83,628 11,387 54,626 108,635 138,254
Depreciation e 2,944 2,487 - 5,191 2,944 7,678
Amortisation of trademark (included in ~ F1Z 85 (Gt ABHERS)
selling expenses) - - - 416 - 416
Reversal of allowance for inventories ~ FEEERE (F AE Y
(included in other income) #) (802) - - - (802) -
Allowance for inventories (included in ~ FE&E (:t A$#E RIFER
cost of sales and service rendered) BZHAK) - - - 418 - 418
Allowance for receivables U FUE R 1,427 2,394 - 1,244 1,427 3,638
Reversal of allowance for receivables — JEUEIE B & E ) (1,318) (1,505) - (571) (1,318) (2,076)
Loss on disposal of available-for-sale ~ MEAEHELBEE 2B
financial assets 789 - - - 789 -
Impairment loss of avallable-forsale ~ AItHESBEE L
financial assets REEE 4,078 - - - 4,078 -
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEW % BERREZER
equipment 147 - - - 147 -
Write off of property, plant and HEnE BERS
equipment 73 1,153 - 31 73 1,184
Impairment of property, plant and nx BEREERE
equipment - - - 1,795 - 1,795
Net foreign exchange losses MNEBRER 335 233 2 67 357 300
Operating lease charges forlandand ~ ti RIEF 7 LEREH
buildings (including contingent T (REIAES0ER
rentals of approximately 13,0007 (=5 -4
HK$13,000 (2014: HK$1,023,000)  7%1,023,0007C) ) 3,145 4,222 12,782 41827 15,927 46,049
Staff costs including directors' SINA(REESMHE)
emoluments
Salaries, bonus and allowances He TAREY 33,863 38,281 11,091 38977 44,954 77,258
Retirement benefit scheme BRI EIMH
contributions 2,618 2,941 537 813 3,155 4,754
Provision/(reversal) for employee EERFIEAZBE/
benefit obligations (%m) 1,305 1,448 - (116) 1,305 1332
37,786 42,670 11,628 40,674 49,414 83,344

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015




15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 A B Ak WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

LOSS FOR THE YEAR (Continued)

There is a reversal of allowance for receivables of approximately
HK$1,318,000 (2014: HK$2,076,000) for the year, being the
result of persistent effort on the management of quality of
trade receivables and certain long overdue debts are recovered
during the year.

Cost of inventories sold includes staff costs, depreciation and
operating lease charges of approximately HK$24,214,000
(2014: HK$26,408,000) which are included in the amounts
disclosed separately above.

15. FREE (&)

REERBABZEERRBNOABK
1,318,000 (= Z — O 4 : A %2,076,000
TL) EmERREARFES NRNE SRR
ERCEEEERKEE T RABAER
e

BEHEFERABIEE THRA  ERKE
S 4 7B#24,214,0000C ( —ZF— 0
F 1 5 #26,408,0007T) * JhEt A £ B
WA -

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS 16. EENREE FHM
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEEI MO T:
Retirement benefit
Fees Salaries and allowances scheme contributions Total
ok FERER BB EERR @zt
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
-%-1f | ZT-0F [ Z%-EF | ZF-0F | Z%-BF | ZF0F | -R-EF [ ZF-QF
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000
BETT | BEFT | BETT | BEFT | BETR | EEFT | BETR | BEFT
Executive Directors HirEs
Mr. Chung Man Wai (Note () EXREE (Wite) - - - 2,367 - 30 - 2,397
M. Lau Chi Yuen, Joseph BEEgs 600 600 1,056 1956 18 15 2574 2571
Mr. Lau Chun Fat, George (Note (4)) BEREE (WD) - - - - - - - -
600 600 1,956 4323 18 45 2,574 4,968
Independent Non-executive Directors BUkHTES
Mr. Fung Chan Man, Alex BEEE 96 9% - - - - 96 9%
Mr. Lee Chung Mong, John BEREE 9% 9% - - - - 9% 9%
Mr. Tam Wing Kin ERREE 9% 9% - - - - 9% 9%
288 288 - - - - 288 288
888 888 1,956 4323 18 45 2,862 5,256

Notes: (a) Resigned on 30 June 2014.

(b) Appointed on 30 June 2014.

Biet: (@ RZZE-—EFARA=+HEHE:

b) H-ZB-—HFRA=THEHEZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

16. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2014: Nil).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the
year included 1 (2014: 2) director(s) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of
the remaining 4 (2014: 3) individuals are set out below:

Basic salaries and allowances

Compensation for loss of office BB mES

Retirement benefit scheme contributions R K18 F 5+ 21 4 3%

1 2 4 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

EXFr & MR

16. EEREESHM (&)

FRALEEAEBESTHEXFBREL
e 2P (T —MF &) -

FRAAEEREAESFHALERE —F
(ZF—mF - MREF HMEERX L
X 25z R - e (ZF—0
FZB)ALZHMEINGT

2015 2014
—E-AfF —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$°000
BT T BT T
6,451 7,165

69 -

66 316

6,586 7,481




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

16. DIRECTORS' AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

17.

18.

(Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

HK$Nil to HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

16.

ZTZE8%1,000,0007T

75 #51,000,001 7T &
751,500,000
75 #1,500,001 7T &2
75 #2,000,0007T
7 #3,500,00102
75 #4,000,0007T
784,500,001 &2
75,000,000

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
any of the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014: Nil).

LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
included a loss of approximately HK$296,259,000 (2014:
HK$98,886,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
for the year ended 30 June 2015 (2014: Nil).

17.

18.

a5 A B Ak WL GE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

EEkEEHFM (&)

BRAHINE AT &85

Number of individuals

AT EE
2015 2014
—E2-hF — P4
2 _
1 1
- 1
1 _
- 1
4 3

FR-AEEYERTNESNME  F
RMAREB S INARE B 2 B85 2k
BEES (ZT—MFHE)-

ARAREEAELFERNER
KARHEAEABREEANSERFBEERAR
RIS TR R R 12 2 1B 407815 296,259,000
7T ( —Z— P04 : A #598,886,0007T) °
;5

EEfREREE T AT ~A=1H
I FEIRMERMBRR (T —OEF &) -

FRBIEE () ARAE
TR RARER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F

5
—AFENA=THILFE

19. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

126

From continuing and discontinued operations

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$245,444,000 (2014: HK$104,391,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
4,931,793,790 (2014: 4,931,793,790, as adjusted to
reflect the bonus issue on 13 July 2015, details refer to
note 42) in issue during the year, as adjusted to reflect the
bonus issue on 13 July 2015.

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 would be anti-dilutive and there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the Company’s
options granted to an investor. Diluted loss per share
was same as the basic loss per share from the continuing
and discontinued operations for the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014.

From continuing operations
Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$241,664,000 (2014: HK$86,784,000) and the
denominator used is the same as that detailed above for
basic loss per share from continuing and discontinued
operations.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

19. BREE

(a)

(b)

REFAECEXRBRORIEREREK
FRELER

AAREBABLESRERNEBED
BERAAGHEBEARBLEZFANEBE
#4978 #5245,444,0007T ( —Z — Q4 :
75 #104,391,0007T) R FRNEITZ
AR 2 N ¥ 19 814,931,793,790
RCHAEUARMR -_ZE—HFtA
T=ZHBZAKRET) (ZE—HF:
4,931,793,790% (& FH B AR MM =
E-AF+AT=B24RET &#
B2 RNE42) )58

ZIRBER IR
RBE-ZT-HAFI-FT-NFA
“tHRILEFETERSE er‘ﬁifﬂE

AR EREREERERAREE
ER MEBEBARRZET —4
?ﬁﬁﬁzﬁ%%%Z@EEﬁ%%ﬁﬂ%
BE-ZTOhFLR-FT-NEXRA
E+EI¢¢ET*%T?%%&E%%U:,%§%
X B EERESRANER
VEIC

REFECERE

GREXER

RARHBEAEBGEEREAREEIR
%Fm‘ﬂ%ﬁ/\ﬁﬁ{ﬁZiWEﬂ%i@;‘%
#241,664,0007T (=T — O F : H
86,784,0007T ) 5t & - AR 25
BNl ERBRHEREER
REe#RIEREEB s GREKREBERS
Rz ER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

19. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) From continuing operations (Continued)

(9]

Diluted loss per share

The exercise of the Group's outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 would be anti-dilutive and there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the Company’s
options granted to an investor, Diluted loss per share
was same as the basic loss per share from the continuing
operations for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

From discontinued operation

Basic loss per share from the discontinued operation
is HK0.077 cent per share (2014: HK0.357 cent per
share), based on the loss for the year from discontinued
operation attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$3,780,000 (2014: HK$17,607,000)
and the denominator used is the same as that detailed
above for basic loss per share from continuing and
discontinued operations.

The exercise of the Group’s outstanding convertible non-
voting preference shares for the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 would be anti-dilutive and there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the Company’s
options granted to an investor. Diluted loss per share was
same as the basic loss per share from the discontinued
operation for the years ended 30 June 2015 and 2014.

a5 A B Ak WL GE

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

19. BRERE (&)

(b) REFELEEK (F)

(9]

FREBEER
REZ2-_Z—HFER_FT—UERA
_+E¢$fTTT§$$@Zﬁ*TTTf

SR ERERE RS AEREE
B R EAREAR TZTE?—%

REEZBEREZBEEEE B -
BE_ZT—AFR_T-—MNOFRA

STRLFERERERG 2B
BERESRENEIEER -

RECKRIEREXK

REERIEREEB 2 BREXREE
BER.077BW (ZE—HF : B
0.3571ll) - ZBUR DIRB AN A
BEABEREERIELEXER 2F
A &5 18 4978 #53,780,0007T ( =& —M
& B ¥17,607,0007T) 5T E M ATE A
2O FX G ERBFEL
EEBROKIELEEE 2 BRER
EBFER 2o AR -

REBEE_ZE—RFR-_F—WNF A
:+E¢$THEKEIZﬁ$ﬂﬁ
AR ERREEERS AR REE
R EMBEEBARFZET —4%
REEZBREZ BEBEE B
BHE_Z-—hFE_FT-NFEAH
=STHIEFEZERIEREER T
P g R R g R A AR iR A ]

FRBIEE () ARAE

#g AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5O B R W

20.

128

ok

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—F

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

—AFENA=FHIEFE

20. H

Tax effects relating to each component of other comprehensive

income for the year:

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Fair value changes of
available-for-sale financial assets

Reclassification adjustments for
amounts transferred to profit or loss
of available-for-sale financial assets
- Disposal
- Impairment losses

Surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment

Other comprehensive income
for the year

BRERNEBFEEL
EREE
fﬁﬁﬁﬁéﬁz

fﬁﬁ ﬂﬁFZ
BEREREVEEY
BRAERE
—-iheE
-REBE

BN BERREZEH

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

=

=

i 2 T Uy &8

ERFAEMEmMBE S0 2HBER
2

2015 2014

“E-1f —E-ME
Amount Amount Amount Amount
before tax Tax after tax before tax Tax after tax
BRBE2E BE  BE&SE | RELE BE  RikeE
HKS 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BETT BETT BETT BETFT BT BT
- - - 4 - 4
(4,078) - (4,078) 88 - 88
43 - 443 - - -
4,078 - 4,078 - - -
1,621 (405) 1,216 784 (216) 568
2,064 (405) 1,659 876 (216) 660




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 21. ¥ -BEREE
Group
x5E
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office Motor
improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
B EEBR
HEWEEE B R ER BAERE AE Fot ]
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BB EEFT
Cost or valuation BABESREE
At 1July 2013 RZE-—=%F+H—H 8,873 3,749 8,884 2,202 23,708
Additions ER 1,396 19 3,198 - 4613
Write off e (540) - (766) - (1,306)
Surplus on revaluation Eh R - (668) - - (668)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERBENEL
held for sale FRPEE (9,160) - (9,082) (392) (18,634)
Exchange differences EHESE 3 3 9 - 15
At 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZZ-MER A=TAK
—T-mFE+A-A 572 3,103 2,243 1810 7,728
Additions R 1,544 - 390 - 1,934
Write off/disposals fise/ & (88) - (827) - (915)
Surplus on revaluation EhREH - (448) - - (448)
Business combination (note 37(3)) EBAG (Wi370) 5,361 8,799 136 504 14,800
At 30 June 2015 RZE-RE
~A=TH 7,389 11,454 1,942 2314 23,099
Accumulated depreciation and B ERAE
impairment
At 1 July 2013 R-ZZE—=%+HA—H 2,835 - 3,025 1,257 7117
Charge for the year FRRX 2,233 1,452 3,474 519 7,678
Impairment loss REER 1,026 - 769 - 1,795
Write off e (122) - - - (122)
Write back on revaluation EREERE - (1,452) - - (1,452)
Transfer to non-current assets BRERENEL
held for sale ERDEE (5,783) - (5,598) (363) (11,744)
Exchange differences EREH 3) - 4 - 1
At 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZZE-NERA=TEK
T-NE+A—A 186 - 1,674 1,413 3,273
Charge for the year FRFRX 133 2,069 344 398 2,944
Write off/disposals g/ (15) - (675) - (690)
Write back on revaluation EftHED - (2,069) - - (2,069)
At 30 June 2015 RZE-R%~A=1+H 304 - 1,343 1811 3,458
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2015 RZE-R%< A=A 7,085 11,454 599 503 19,641
At 30 June 2014 RZE-MF~A=TA 386 3,103 569 397 4,455
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AF A=+ HIFE

21.

130

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2015 of the

above assets is as follows:

21. X -BERRE (&)

FIEBER -_T-—HFARA=+THZHAR
B GHEIFOT

Group
x&H
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office
improvements machinery equipment  Motor vehicles Total
BR-#ER
HENELER BE R BRERE AE ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BYETT BYTr BYF BYF BETT
At cost BRAE 7,389 - 1,942 2,314 11,645
At valuation RitE - 11,454 - - 11,454
7,389 11,454 1,942 2,314 23,099

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 30 June 2014 of the

above assets is as follows:

EIEER -T—UFRA=+THZAAX
BEREESITOT:

Group
AEE
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold Plant and and office
improvements machinery equipment Motor vehicles Total
Bl RER
HEMERE PR Rt 25 MOERE AE F ]
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
JBEFT BEFIT BEFT BEFT JEEFT
At cost BEAE 572 - 2,243 1,810 4,625
At valuation RiGE - 3,103 - - 3,103
572 3,103 2,243 1,810 7,728

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1HIFE

21. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group's plant and machinery were revalued at fair market
value on 30 June 2015 by reference to market evidence
of recent transactions for similar plant and machinery by
GA Valuation Limited (2014: GA Valuation Limited), an
independent firm of professional valuers.

The carrying amount of the Group's plant and machinery
would have been approximately HK$9,577,000 (2014:
HK$1,609,000) had they been stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The Group carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of its
property, plant and equipment, having regard to the recurring
losses suffered by certain retail shops. These assets were
used in the Group’s appeal and related accessories segment.
The reviews led to the recognition of an impairment loss of
approximately HK$1,795,000 in relation to certain leasehold
improvements and furniture, fixtures and office equipment,
that had been recognised in profit or loss for the year ended
30 June 2014,

21. X -BERRE (#)

REE 7 WP M2t B B R A ERTT
REEARAT (ZT—m4E  REFE
BERARDR-ZZE—RAFARAA=ZTHZR
BURE R # eI 2 TSR SR AFH
BEEMGE-

fid DA B Ak R At 4T & RORUE B 18 B R
AEEBENEEZFRAESORER
9,577,0007T ( —F — 4 : & %1,609,000
JT)°

AEBEREBEETEEWMERAI ZKETEMNE
BEEHNEYME BELZEH2AEKE:.
ZEBEETRNASEE 2 A& & 48 78 B4+
D ZEERHNBLEBAE THEYMEE
BAREM EERIRAEREERRE
BB 4978 %1,795,00000 WE KRB E =
—MFEANA=ZtHLEFEZIBRANER
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

22. GOODWILL

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at

22. B8

REHEHBB2HEREERDEEE

132

acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that A XENEBREHcREEELESM-B
business combination. The carrying amount of goodwill had SEEZEBEREEMAT:
been allocated as follows:
Group
r5HE
Provision of
on-line shopping
advertising and
media related
services - Luxey Swimwear - Apparel
Online Solutions Easy Time Garment and and related
Limited Trading Limited swimwear - accessories -
(“Luxey Online") (“Easy Time") Ricotex Charmston Total
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c)) (note (d))
RS LB
EERER
B RS-
EXPLER K% —Easy Time
BRAF ([EF  Trading Limited RERXE PR R AREA
@EHE®])  ([EasyTime]) -FsE B o — B8 k)
(Hizt@) (Wiztb) (Hi#(c) (i)
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
JEEFr BEFT BEFT BEFT JEEFr
Cost BAE
At1July2013,30 June 2014and  R-ZT—=FtA—H"
1 July 2014 —E-MEXA=TH
RZE-ME+A—H 75,343 640,966 - 28,793 745,102
Business combination (note 37(a) %15 & 6t (4/i£37(a)) - - 61,457 - 61,457
Write off on disposal of Charmston 1 ! & £ 6T B H 34 - - - (28,793) (28,793)
At 30 June 2015 RZZE—RF~ A=TH 75,343 640,966 61,457 - 777,766
Accumulated impairment losses 3 HEFE
At 1 July 2013 —T-Z£tf-R 32,701 287,405 - - 320,106
Impairment loss REBE 36,392 - - 28,793 65,185
At 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014 —mERA=TA
—T-mE+A—H 69,093 287,405 - 28,793 385,291
Impairment loss REEE 6,250 276,054 - - 282,304
Write off on disposal of Charmston 1 & £ 67 65 i 34 - - - (28,793) (28,793)
At 30 June 2015 —hEANA=1A 75,343 563,459 - - 638,802
Carrying amount REE
At 30 June 2015 —Z-RFRA=TH - 77,507 61,457 - 138,964
At 30 June 2014 RZE-WE A=+H 6,250 353,561 - - 359,811

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The recoverable amount of the provision of on-line shopping,
advertising and media related services CGU is determined from
value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the value in use
calculation are those regarding the discount rate, growth rate and
budgeted gross margin and turnover during the period. The Group
estimates discount rate using pre-tax rate that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the CGU. The growth rate is based on long-term average economic
growth rate of the geographical area in which the business of the
CGU operates. Budgeted gross margin and turnover are based on
past practices and expectations on market development.

During the six months ended 31 December 2014, the Group
prepared cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial
budgets approved by the directors for the next five (Year ended 30
June 2014: five) years with residual period using the growth rate
of 5% (Year ended 30 June 2014: 5%). This rate did not exceed
the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets. The
rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the provision
of on-line shopping, advertising and media related services CGU
was 13.22%. Based on the past performance, the Group had
revised its cash flow forecasts and the recoverable amount of this
CGU was negligible. The goodwill allocated to this CGU was thus
considered as non-recoverable. The goodwill has therefore been
fully impaired through recognition of an impairment loss against
goodwill of approximately HK$6,250,000 during the six months
ended 31 December 2014 and year ended 30 June 2015 (2014:
HK$36,392,000).

22. BHE (&)

Hiat

(a)

RHUGLEY BESREBABERE RS
ELEM I RESRDRIECABEETE
EMEE - EREEFEEMEANIER
RBEHRR BRXRHRNZEEEN X
VAR 28 5688 - AR B A E B3R R B (R A BR
BATRE IR R - ZEAR R R B AT IZHE R
BREEZGHANEEEREEELEMA
Bz ERR - ERETIAREELEMM
BEEBzwRZ RPTHQBERERLE
A THHERNE R EER T ABEEN R
M5 ER A RESE-

%ﬁé:%—m¢+:ﬂz+—5¢ﬁm
~$%lﬁﬁﬁéﬁ2ﬁWBEV5
EFRBRZARAF (BHEZ miﬂﬂ
:+E¢¢E&ﬁﬂ%%ﬁ§»&&%%%
25% (BE-_Z—WENA=Z+RHLEE:
5% )IEREFE - BHALERWARBABHAT
52 P REBRE - BRAMNEARMG LE
) B RIEEARRS CIReEE B2 %
BB e R R ER13.22% - BRIEBET R
B AEEEETHRESELENZESRE
FERA R AT E £ B AR 2B T D=1t
BEEEBEMZEHEALER BT ATUE -
it BEREBE-_T—NF+_A=+—
BEAEAREZE=ZFE—RFA=1+HI
FIEEBEREE R EREEL 6,250,000
JL (= Z — PO 4F : ##36,392,0007T ) & A £

A °

FRBIEE () ARAE
R RN
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes. (Continued)

(b)

134

The recoverable amount of the swimwear CGU is determined from
value in use calculation (2014: fair value less costs of disposal using
the income-based approach calculation). The key assumptions for
the value in use calculation are similar to the value in use calculation
of provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services CGU as stated in note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
(2014: five) years with residual period using the growth rate of
3.99% (2014: 5%). This rate does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant markets. The rate used to discount the
forecast cash flows from the Group's activities of manufacturing
and trading of high-end swimwear and related garment products
is 14.96% (2014: 11.55%). The calculation further considered
a 17.44% discount on lack of marketability for the controlling
interests at 30 June 2014.

Based on the past performance, the Group has revised its cash
flow forecasts for this CGU. The recoverable amount of this CGU is
approximately HK$82,348,000 as at 30 June 2015, which is lower
than the carrying amount of this CGU. The goodwill has therefore
been reduced to its recoverable amount through recognition of an
impairment loss against goodwill of approximately HK$276,054,000
(2014: HK$NIl) during the year.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

22. BE (&)

Hret: (&)

(b)

R SELEFEM 2 T RE S FR T E M EA
BEET (ZZ—F : RSB ZQF

ERHERD) EREEFEEMERNET
2 RRIALIR £ XM ()T Az e iR
BY BRERKEAERBREELBMZ
EAEEEE

AEBBBERES R ZBANIZBRIMES
BZZARAF (ZE—NF: 7AF)UHE
HBARBBARNZ3.99% (ZZ2—4%F:5%)
BERAE - LRI RBABEMSE 2T
HRAERR - EANEIAEEREREE
ERXERBEREER ZEBZEREER

BRIR K 514.96% (—ZZF —PNF:11.55% ) °
R-ZT—MNENA=1+8 ZtEE—H
ANIE SR 2 T 5B T #17.44% ©

RIBBERE ASECBITUHREELS
fizBReneBAl - WHeELEEUN_-F
—RAFRNA=THZAKEEENRBE
82,348,0007T  HAKM LIRS EE B2 BRE
B-Alt BERFAEBEREEMEERE
#75%276,054,0007T (Z T —NF : BHET
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22. GOODWILL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

The recoverable amount of the garment and swimwear CGU is
determined from fair value less costs of disposal using the income-
based approach calculation. The key assumptions for the income-
based approach calculation are similar to the value in use calculation
of provision of on-line shopping, advertising and media related
services CGU as stated in note (a) above.

The Group prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most
recent financial budgets approved by the directors for the next five
years with residual period using the growth rate of 3.99%. This rate
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant
markets. The rate used to discount the forecast cash flows from the
Group's activities of manufacturing and trading of garment and
swimwear is 14.73%. The calculation further considered a 26.69%
discount on lack of marketability for the controlling interests.

Key unobservable inputs used in Level 3 fair value measurements are
mainly as below:

Description

Valuation technique

fEER M

Discounted cash flow
A=

Business enterprise value of Ricotex

NeEzExBEEEE

The goodwill allocated to the apparel and related accessories CGU
was fully written off after the disposal of Charmston during the year
ended 30 June 2015.

The assets and liabilities attributable to the apparel and related
accessories CGU had been reclassified to a disposal group held for
sale at 30 June 2014 and the goodwill allocated to the apparel and
related accessories CGU was considered as non-recoverable. An
impairment loss against goodwill of approximately HK$28,793,000
was recognised during the year ended 30 June 2014.

22. BHE (&)

Wiat: (4#&)

()

MRE NOKKRR G EA B 2 7] W RIS E
RAEEAEZRAFERHEKRAE
JE o WA ZAESH EDEFTE A £ 2R EE
M EXMEQ@MIIAZRER EEY BS
REBEERBREELEG 2 EAEEF
Bk

AEBBREBERSR2BRANERECAAES
W2 RRAFERBIEE LA RIBERR 2
3.99%EREHHE - BRALL R W ARBEBAT
B PR RE - EAREARNEER
ENEERERAKEERZERZRER
BRI EH14.73% T HE— Fat AT
IR Z TSR B T %26.69% ©

EIFATEAEBAERZERTAERHA
BBEEEHIINT

Key assumptions Value
FERR BE
Discount rate 14.73%
B %

Long-term revenue growth rate 3.99%
REW R RE

Gross profit margin rate

EF%

Discount for lack of marketability

30% -70%

26.69%

BR= TG TR

(d)

RBE-Z-—AFRNA=TRHILFE R
NIRRT REELS *’\EEZFﬁé‘EEEAﬂj
EAEHR BN -

Ren BRI IRESELENEEZEER
BEER-Z—NEAA=ZTHEHHEA
BERE 2 HEMER) - B AR R AARIEC (T3]
CELBUHRZEEWR AT -5
2 7B EIE 47 128,793,000L RE E =
T—MEXA=ZTRHILFERER
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 23. RB AR 2KRE

Company
KA

2015 2014
—E-AE —OeE
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T JEMF T
Unlisted investments, at cost JEEMIRE B AE 381,609 381,609
Less: impairment losses R EEE (228,563) -
153,046 381,609
Due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A &) I8 235,469 240,406
Less: impairment losses e /BZTEJEETE (231,000) (178,968)
4,469 61,438
Due to subsidiaries JEAST B /B A B FRIE (5,354) (18,249)
Net carrying amount FREHE 152,161 424,798

JEW R EBARRIEREER 28

No B8 [ T J& R AR

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

1 3 6’ Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 30 June 2015 are as

follows:

Name

=L

China Post E-Commerce Group Limited

THEEREERLA

Easy Time

Luxey International (Hong Kong) Limited
ERER (FB)BRRA

Synergy

Active Capital Limited
BEFRAE

Bestime (Asia Pacific) Limited
2R (EX)BERAR

Bestime (H.K.) Limited

2% (BR)ERLA

Charmston

e

Charmston Apparel Limited

Charmston Apparel Marketing Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
MBI,
BEREXLE

Hong Kong
EE

BV
RERAES

Hong Kong
6

BVI
RBELES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B
Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

B

Hong Kong

BE

Hong Kong

B

Issued and
paid up capital

ERTRARKRAE

Ordinary shares of HK$100
1007 2 L im AR

1 ordinary share of US$1
MR1ZTZ AR
Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

A £10,0007T 2 & A%

1 ordinary share of US$1
RIET 2 LRk

Ordinary share of HK$1
BEITERR

Ordinary shares of HK$100
BEI00T 2 LBk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000

78110,0007T 2 AR

Ordinary shares of HK$1,000
1,000 L Bk

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
JEH10,0007T 2 E B

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
75#10,0007 2 HilKk

23.

RAEBARIZRE (&)
RZE—RF

Percentage of ownership

=

EEERADL
2015 2014
—B-1% —mE

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# Gk B k3
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
100% - 100% -
- - - 41%

- - - 41%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

- - - 48%

- - - 48%

- - - 51%

- - - 51%

R ()

TR TARER

—AFNA=THIEFE

NAZTA MBARZE

Principal activities

TEEH

Inactive
BEX

Investment holding

REER
Investment holding
REER

Investment holding

REER

Retailing of men's apparel
BLRETE

Provision of management
services

REEERY

Trading of men's apparel and
provision of management
services

BEBTREURIRE
EERE

Investment holding

REER

Retailing of men’s apparel
BLRETE

Provision of management

services

REEERY

1B
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23. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 23. RITB AR ZRE (&)

Place of

incorporation/

registration and Issued and
Name operation paid up capital Percentage of ownership Principal activities

BRI
8 BEREXLE BRTRBERE BEERAL TEER

2015 2014
—B-E% —E-mE
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
BE B L i
Charmston Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - - - 51%  Provision of management
HK$1,000,000 services
BEBRAF B 7#1,000,0007T 2 E B IR - - - 51%  REERRS
Easy Chain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - - 51%  Retailing of accessories
HERRAT B0 BT ERR - - - 51%  TERH
Eternal International Creation Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - - 51%  Investment holding
KERBRAIRERAR BE BTz ERR - - - 51%  REZR
Expert Concept Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - - - 51%  Retailing of men's apparel
HEERAA & 1007 2 Bk - - - 51% STHRETE
Great Links Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - - 51%  Not yet commenced business
BEBRAF & BT ERR - - - 51%  WARRRZE
*HD Production Limited (“HD") Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - 51% - 27%  Inactive
RERRREERAR ([RERE]) & BEI00T 2 EBR - 51% - 7% EEE
Luxey Online BVI 100 ordinary shares of - 100% - 53%  Investment holding and
US$1 each provision of on-line

shopping, advertising and
media related services

BB LER RERAES BREEIET - 100% - 53%  RESRRREMRLEYD B
100M & 3 % EREBIEERS

Mainline Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of HK$100 - - - 51%  Retailing of men’s apparel

BREARRE EE BB100T 2 LB - - - 51% BERETE

More Chance Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - - 51%  Not yet commenced business

SEBRR EE BT ERK - - - 51% HWARBZEE

New Onward Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$1 - - - 51%  Not yet commenced business

AHABRRE EE BT ERK - - - 51% HWARBZEE

1 3 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015
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. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

=L

On Bright Limited
EEERAA

On Well Limited
EEBRAR
Pro-Shine Limited

BREERAF

Ratio

Gkl

Ricotex

AEE

Ricotex Industrial Co. Ltd.

("Ricotex Cambodia”)

Shining Team Limited

Top Achiever Investments Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
ML,
BEREXLE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
6

Hong Kong
BA

Hong Kong

EE

Hong Kong

BE

Kingdom of
Cambodia

REZETH

Hong Kong
BB
BVI

RERZHES

Issued and
paid up capital

BERTRARRAE

Ordinary share of HK$1
BEITZERR

Ordinary share of HK$1
B Tz ERR

Ordinary share of HK$1
BT B

Ordinary shares of
HK$500,000

7 #£500,0007T 2 & A%

Ordinary shares of
HK$40,000,000

#6#40,000,0007T 2 & B

Registered capital of
US$1,000,000/paid up
capital of US$1,000,000
A 71,000,005 7T,/
B &2 7Z1,000,0005 7T

Ordinary shares of
HK$500,000
A £500,0007T 2 & B R

100 ordinary shares of
US$1 each
SREE1ZET.2 1008
ERK

23. RIB AR ZRE (&)

Percentage of ownership

=

BEERADL
2015 2014
“B-1% —mE

Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# Gk BB k3
- - - 51%
- - - 51%
- - - 41%
- - - 41%
- - - 51%
- - - 51%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 45% - -
- 45% - -
- 45% - -
- 45% - -
- - - 51%
- - - 51%
- - - 41%
- - - 41%

R ()

TR TARER

—AFNA=THIEFE

Principal activities

TEEH

Retailing of men's apparel
SLRETE

Retailing of men'’s and ladies’
apparel
BTRATRETE

Not yet commenced business

CENG ¢

Investment holding and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products

BEZRREERRKEAR
ERREER

Investment holding and
trading of garment products
and swimwear

REBRREEREERK
/7]<ZY

Manufacturing and trading
of garment products and
swimwear

EEREEREERRKE

Not yet commenced business

HARREE

Investment holding

RAER

1B
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23.

Name

L

Top-Alitalia (Int'l) Limited
BL(BR)BERAR

Yofiel International Group Limited

FREREEERAR

BHEEE
Global Post E-Commerce Trading
Limited (“Global Post"”)

CRIDERAT*

REBEES (R BRAR*
(IR#))

IFm SR AR RERLA
("IPITEL")

IFT R BREKERLA
(MDIFmeEs])

REFEHKERAR ("REMLE")

REMERKRERAR ([REME])

RIBETERBRRE ("RYIBET")

RBETEFERRA

*

140

(TR ])

ok

Place of
incorporation/
registration and
operation
ML,
BEREXLE

Hong Kong
EE

Hong Kong
BB

PRC

PRC

HE

PRC

HE

PRC

hE

HD is in the progress of deregistration.

The English name of this company represents management’s best
efforts in translating the Chinese name of this company as no

English name has been registered.

Annual Report 2015

—AFENA=THIEFE

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Issued and
paid up capital

BETRARRA

Ordinary shares of HK$100
BEI00T 2 TR

Ordinary shares of
HK$10,000
7&#10,0007 2 EiRMKk

Registered capital of
RMB4,000,000/paid up
capital of RMB4,000,000
FH1TE 7R A R #4,000,000
T/ BERRAARE
4,000,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$9,500,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,100,000
Tl & 79,500,000
T/ BHRRABE
8,100,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$8,000,000/paid up
capital of HK$8,000,000
T & 7% 8,000,000
T/ BRRBRAEE
8,000,0007T

Registered capital of
HK$700,000/paid up capital
of HKSNil

& A5 700,0007T,
BHERRABBET

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

23. RMBARZRE (£)

Percentage of ownership

BEERAL
2015 2014
—E-1f —F-mF
Direct Indirect Direct Indirect
H# M HiE Lo}
- - - 51%
- - - 51%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
- - - 51%
- - - 51%

Principal activities

TEEH

Retailing of men's apparel
SLRETE

Trading of swimwear
BEXE

Inactive

EEX

Inactive

BER

Manufacturing and trading
of high-end swimwear and
related garment products
EERBEREKERIEER
Z%F & nn

Not yet commence business

EE NG S

Y BBEEILEAHE

AR

AIIAEE A MEX AR B2 A

ZRXEEREEBERALNARPXS

TEEE MK o
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Global Post, ;TFIT &% and BE3=7 4 are wholly-owned

foreign enterprises established in the PRC.

Although the Group owns less than 50% of the equity interest

in Ricotex and Ricotex Cambodia (“Ricotex Group”), it is able
to gain power over more than 50% of the voting rights by

virtue of an agreement with other investors. Consequently, the

Group consolidates Ricotex Group.

The following table shows information of subsidiaries that

have non-controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group.

The summarised financial information represents amounts

before inter-company eliminations.

Name

Principal place of business/
country of incorporation

% of ownership interests/
voting rights held by NCI

Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets/(liabilities)

Accumulated NCI

R

Bagny /
SRR

FERBEMGE L
RERER/
BRREEIM

FRPEE
RYEE
FRBEE
RBEE

BE/ (8fE)FE

EH eSS

23. RMBARZRE (£)

R TPIM &5 RRENE TR B

MZINEBERE

BEAKERNG

= R mER i ([F

SEEE]ER DNS0%2 IR - AT

AEBREBEMREE ZHH
50% 2 L RHE 2 HER

EEESAE AR

TRETHER

%Al SRR

At AEEENS

BB BB 2 IFE

Pettss ([FFEiER ) BAEEMEBE
R HBERRET A REEHEATN S -

#g AR

Ricotex Charmston Luxey Online
Y- B EZQALRE
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-If ~F-mEF “E-If “Z-|F ZE-1f —Z-|F
Hong Kong/Hong Kong Hong Kong/Hong Kong Hong Kong/BVI
BE/BR BE/BH B/ ABRLEE
55%/40% - -I- 49%/49% -I- 47%/47%
HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS 000 HK$000
BETT BETT BEFT BT BT BT
14,800 - - 16,664 - 500
28,207 - - 88,234 - 1,416
(22,398) - - (10,007) - -
(95) - - (93,613) - (34,309)
20,514 - - 1,278 - (32,393)
11,283 - - 4 - (15,458)
HREEE (FER) ARAT
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23.

24,

142

ok

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Name

Revenue

Loss

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to NCI

Net cash used in operating
activities

Net cash used in investing
activities

Net cash generated from
financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in
cash and cash equivalents

&%

Yg
R
EENERE

NETIHERED 2 BE

RERDMAREEE
REZHMAALFE

RERDAEREFE

AERALEEN
(D) /EmF&

—AFENA=THIEFE

23. RMBARZRE (£)

Ricotex Charmston Luxey Online

EE B EXQLER
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
ZE-If —F-mEF “E-If “T-PF ZE-%f —Z-|F
HKS000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BETT EETT BEFT BEFT BETT EETT
9,573 - 36,403 172,233 3,114 3,322
(17,934) . (10,754) (15,999) (2,674) (6,749)
(17,934) - (10,754) (15,999) (2,674) (6,749)
- - (5,475) (8,534) (1,261) (3,176)
(23,905) - (175) (1,771) (2,921) (6,506)
(14,941) - (1,867) (3,895) (4) (569)
38,000 - 5,232 5,700 3,022 5613
(846) - 3,190 34 97 (1,462)

As at 30 June 2015, the bank and cash balances of the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$11,280,000 (2014
HK$5,098,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations.

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted investments:

Share of net assets

FLEHRE:

EmEERE

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
Annual Report 2015

24,

w=
ZHEBA

T-AFRNA=TH KAEERTHE

AIUAREAEMN ZIRTTRIRS
174 BB 111,280,000 ( =

T4
/%S #5,098,0007T) ° A R K 32 AN

k& o

2

SR B ONE B IR R N A5 1E - EE
RATEERRE

R-—EBHERT2RE

Group
A EE

—=—

2015
HE

HK$’000
BT T

2014
e — 4
HK$ 000

JBE BT o

17,130
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

24. R—EBEQXT2RE (&)

Details of the Group's associate and its subsidiary at 30 June

2014 were as follows:

Name

&8

Ricotex

=
1] I]}
o

Ricotex Cambodia

Place of incorporation/

registration and Issued and

operation paid up capital
aMRLEH

BRREENE ERTRARRA

Hong Kong Ordinary shares of

HK$40,000,000

BE 7 #40,000,0007T 2

LER

Kingdom of Cambodia Registered capital of

US$1,000,000/paid up

capital of US$Nil

REEIHE A MEAR

1,000,000% T,/

BEHRRATET

The following table shows information of associates that

are material to the Group. These associates are accounted
for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. The summarised financial information presented is

based on the HKFRS financial statements of the associate and

its subsidiary.

BRAREEZBERALEAMBRARN
T-NERNA=THZFBWOT:

Percentage of ownership

Principal activities

EEEB DL TEEH
Direct Indirect

E# &

45% - Investment holding and
trading of garment
products

REZRKEEREER
- 45% Not yet commenced
business
HAFIRE %

TRETHRASEMSBERZ 2B ER

RlZEBR -ZFHENRERE

F07 YN N

BMBMRPAR A2 2 HBERE
ZNERBERRRENBARIRESBY
BRELNRE 2B HREK -

Name

Principal place of business/country of
incorporation

FEEEME FMKIER

Principal activities

TEEB

% of ownership interests/voting rights
held by the Group

AEBABAECEEREER
FEREEAS L

=L

Ricotex

FeE
2015 2014
—E-RF —T-F

Hong Kong/Hong Kong
'R/ BE
Trading of garment products

EEREER

45%/45%

eSS ?’*Hx AR 2 7]
E KX
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24. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (Continued)

24. R—EBEQXT2RE (&)

Ricotex
FlsE
2015 2014
—E-AEF —E—FE
HKS$000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Non-current assets ERBEE - 1,756
Current assets REEE - 43,869
Current liabilities REEE - (7,558)
Net assets BEFE - 38,067
Group's share of carrying amount of AEEFEEGER CREEBE
interests - 17,130
Revenue g 9,573 -
Loss for the year FREIE 17,934 1,933
Other comprehensive income H 2 H W - -
Total comprehensive income FEKEBRRE 17,934 1,933
25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 25 AHEESREE
Group Company
Fis -3 | ¥ NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F ZE-IF —E-1F —ZE-ImF
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
BETT BETFT BETT BETFT
Unlisted equity securities, ~ FF EMIRAZE % B AE
at cost
Info-Source Media EREERRAA
Limited (“Info-Source”)  ([f=)&]) - 43,325 - 43,325
Less: impairment losses Il S EE 1B - (43,325) - (43,325)
Unlisted equity securities,  JF EMRAES ZRTE
at fair value
Charmston &t 2,998 - - -
Debt investments listed BB EH 2
outside Hong Kong, EHRE BRATE
at fair value - 10,506 - 10,506
2,998 10,506 - 10,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(Continued)

The fair values of listed investments are based on current bid
prices. Unlisted equity securities for Info-Source were carried at
cost less impairment as they do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured.

In the absence of quoted market price in an active market,
the directors determine whether the Group’s investments
in unlisted equity securities for Info-Source are impaired by
considering information from a variety of sources, including
the latest management financial information and the
performance of the investee company. Due to the changes
in market condition of the business of the investee company,
an impairment of approximately HK$43,325,000 was made
against the available-for-sale financial assets during the year
ended 31 December 2010.

On 11 January 2013, a special resolution was passed by the
shareholders of Info-Source to voluntarily wind up Info-Source.
It was the directors’ opinion that the winding up of Info-Source
would not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
position. The winding up was completed on 19 April 2015 and
the investment cost and impairment losses were derecognised.

Available-for-sale financial assets are denominated in the
following currencies:

25 AJHESREE (&)

EHEREZ R HEDRERSRFER
B ANEIRZIF EMEBARE S ERE
BhmEAEAmE®RE mMEQFELS
BER] SEhET 8 - MOOF L RARRE 5 PAR AR
RO FI B ©

Ep D ERMisscMismME EFERE
FERRBENCENE BRESOIHEG
LEBUBEMRERERRI KRS
BEEAEERERIFLTRAFSR 2K
EEORE - HREREAGZEB 2T
BERNE BE T -EF+_A=+—
HIEFE - £978%43,325,00070 2B EF A
HETHEESRMEE-

R-ZE—=F—A+—H FERIBRE
B-EBHIRZREBRERER-EF
R BERZBBETNSHAEE 2K
RREREAZE - FREN T —LF
OA+ B ZEREEEUERERIRE KA Kk
RV

AHEESREEN TG REM:

Group Company
bS] YN

2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-5F “E-QNF —E-5F “E-NF
HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BETFT BETT BETFT
Hong Kong dollars B 2,998 - - -
United States dollars T - 4,796 - 4,796
RMB ARE - 5,710 - 5,710
2,998 10,506 - 10,506

FRBIEE () ARAE

TR TARER 1 4 5



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

26.

27.

—AFENA=THIEFE

INVENTORIES 26. 78
Group
REH
2015 2014
—E-fHEF —E-MF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BB T
Raw materials R R 2,390 3,593
Work in progress B o 2,424 2,673
Finished goods BIRK oA 1,731 1,544
Merchandises P& o 119 -
6,664 7,810
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. ERE S R HEAMIRM
Group Company
b FANG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1F — N4 —E-EF —mE
HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETFT BETT BETFT
Trade and bills receivables  EWE S BRF K Z#& 4,693 12,107 - -
Prepayments, deposits and T3~ & &
other receivables Hit IR 2,671 2,862 292 956
7,364 14,969 292 956
The Group normally allows credit terms to customers EBBET AEEAFEPZEEHN

except for retail customers ranging from 30 to 90 days. The

Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding

receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by the

directors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, based on the

invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows:

Current to 30 days
—90 days

91 - 180 days

Over 180 days

BIEAZE30X
31REIOKR
91RE180K
HiE180K

As at 30 June 2015, an allowance was made for estimated
irrecoverable trade and bills receivables of approximately
HK$2,258,000 (2014: HK$2,252,000).

Reconciliation of allowance for trade and bills receivables:

At beginning of year REH]
Allowance for the year FARE
Amounts written off 88 SR I8

Reversal of allowance for the year FABERE
Transfer to non-current assets

held for sale

At end of year RER

ERERIFHEZFRBEE

27. ERE S R EMARR (&)

% R A A2 U 5 R RIS
BB 2 BB ST

Group

REE
2015 2014
—E2-i%F —T-F
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BT
2,156 5,335
1,115 4,421
717 2,128
705 223
4,693 12,107
R-Z—REXA=TA AHHFA

ez ERE SRR NEE MR EE
4 BB 12,258,000 (Z T — U4 : B
2,252,0007T) °

EUEZEREREBRELRR:

Group

AEE
2015 2014
—E-hF —E—OF
HK$000 HK$000
BT T BT T
2,252 2,140
1,330 3,431
(6) (180)
(1,318) (1,505)
- (1,634)
2,258 2,252
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As of 30 June 2015, trade and bills receivables of
approximately HK$1,424,000 (2014: HK$2,351,000) were
past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade and bills receivables

is as follows:

- 90 days 31T REI0K
91 - 180 days 91 RKE180K
Over 180 days HBE180K

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and bills receivables
are denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollars ke
United States dollars ETT
RMB AR
Total BEE

1 4 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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27.

FEWE S REMERR (&)

RZE—AFA=1TH BKRESEZIX
ﬂﬁéﬁz% #1,424,0007C (ZF — M4
75 #2,351,0007T ) E %61 BB 37 R (A © 1t
ERIEEE T EE R B
FPEBE LEREKESERRER 2 RER
DU :

Group

EH
2015 2014
—F-1fF —T—mF
HK$000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
2 —
717 2,128
705 223
1,424 2,351

REB 2 BUWEZERERE 2 REEN
TNIEE RSB

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—UF
HKS$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
549 326

4,144 11,751

- 30

4,693 12,107




28.

29.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND BANK AND CASH  28. ERHBRITHERRBITRESER
BALANCES
The Group's pledged bank deposits represented deposits AEBEERRITERAESHERTRITZ
pledged to a bank to secure banking facilities granted to the TR LG RITAR TAEBE 28 - %5
Group. The deposits are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. BFRTIABE BERL -
As at 30 June 2015, the bank and cash balances of the RZE—RHFXNA=ZF+TH KXEBEMU
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately ARBERBEMZRTEREEFAAR
HK$17,629,000 (2014: HK$24,399,000). The bank and cash B 117,629,000 (— T — W5 : B
balances of the Company denominated in RMB amounted 24,399,0007T) e AAAIAAREEFHE 2R
to approximately HK$5,992,000 (2014: HK$19,301,000). TR e & F 0 AEK5,992,000T (=ZF
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to — P4 B #519,301,0007T) ° AR EE K
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and RONERZ R B 2 SINE B IR 1G] J A
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign e SiENMNEEIRET -
Exchange Regulations.
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 29. BNES RHAMERR
Group Company
AEE PN
2015 2014 2015 2014
t- ik —T-pmF “E-1% —T-pmE
HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000
BEFT BETT BEFT BETT
Trade payables ERESHER 1421 2,415 - -
Due to a substantial BH—2EEREZER
shareholder 495 495 - -
Due to an associate JER— B E DR FRIE - 9,000 - -
Due to a non-controlling &R —RIMB AR
shareholder of — R IFERRER 2 R
a subsidiary 93 - - -
Accruals and FEEtE AR A M EMER
other payables 16,780 13,907 2,122 2,014
18,795 25,817 2,122 2,014

FRBIEE () ARAE
R RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

The amount due to a substantial shareholder is unsecured,
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. The
amounts due to an associate and a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the date of
receipt of goods, is as follows:

Current to 30 days BEVEAZE30K
- 90 days 31RE9I0K

91 - 180 days 91 RE180K

Over 180 days BB 180K

1 5 0 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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29. ENESZREMRNR (&)

BN —R2ITERRZEAREER 28
Ko S [ TE S X o RN — B 2 R ) B —
MR R 2 —BIFERBER ZRIATI R
EEW RERBHEREE-

BEWE A BNE SRR RE DT
T

Group

rEE
2015 2014
—E-IF —T-lmF
HK$°000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
1,385 2,231
32 105
- 19
10 60
1,427 2,415




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 29. ENEZREMRR (£Z)

AEBZRNEZERZREENNIE

denominated in the following currencies: MR

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are

Group

REH
2015 2014
—E—-F1fF — g
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Hong Kong dollars ok 718 1,679
United States dollars ETT 18 56
RMB ARKE 691 680
Total 48 =E 1,427 2,415

30. LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER 30. RE—RM B AT 2 —BIFZERKR
OF A SUBSIDIARY ZEX

RE—HMBARC —BIFERRRCE
REBEERT ZEELEELRITERA
AT RIT BB HEERFER1.5%E
FEBBIREREE

The loan from a non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest-bearing at the prevailing Hong Kong
dollar prime rate of The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited minus 1.5% and repayable on demand.
The carrying amount of the loan is denominated in Hong Kong BERZEREEBEABEBE.
dollars.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

30. LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER
OF A SUBSIDIARY (Continued)

The interest rate at 30 June 2015 is 3.5%.

The loan is arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk.

The directors estimate the fair value of the loan from a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary, by discounting its
future cash flows at the market rate, to be approximated its
fair value.

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

At 1 July 2013 R-_ZE—=%+F—H

Provision used B R

(Reversal)/addition of provisions — #f& (#[@) /& i

Transfer to liabilities directly BREEBEHEY
associated with non-current ERBEEEERH L
assets held for sale (note 38) BE (HiH38)

Exchange differences ]

At 30 June 2014 and RZE—NFESA=THK
1 July 2014 —E-WFE+H—H

Provision used B RS

(Reversal)/addition of provisions — #f& (#[@) /& A

At 30 June 2015 RZZE—HEA=1H

1 5 2 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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30. RE—FEMEBLAR 2 —BFERRRE

ZER(#)
R-E—HFA=+HZFEA35% -

)\/?@Jﬂ:lj—v—u-l—g $$..ﬁﬁ7¥K E,
BN RE -

B
Ay

EEFBEMGA XA RKF S REM
RE—ERB AR 2 —BIFERRE 2
ERAFEREQNFEES-

31. EERAEE
Group
rEE
Provision for PRC employee
long service severance
payments compensation
(note (a) (note (b)) Total
REBRKE TEES
BE B E
(Mit(a)) (H17E b)) st
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
974 3,724 4,698
- (277) (277)
(121) 1,453 1,332
(368) - (368)
- 7 7
485 4,893 5,378
- (239) (239)
3) 1,308 1,305
482 5,962 6,444




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 30 June 2015 B2 =F—HFNH

31. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Provision for long service payments

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is obliged
to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances to certain employees who have completed at least five
years of services with the Group. The amount payable is dependent
on the employees’ final salary and years of services, and is reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group's retirement plan that are
attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group does
not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations.

PRC employee severance compensation

Pursuant to the new PRC Labour Contract Law which became
effective on 1 January 2008, the Group is required to pay the
severance compensation to its employees if the employment
contract expires and is not renewed unless the Group has offered
the employment contract on the same terms and conditions but the
offer is rejected by the employee.

Under the Labour Contract Law, the severance compensation is
calculated based on one month's salary for each year of employment
completed by the employee and is capped at 12 months’ salary or
12 times 300% of the average monthly salary of the previous year at
the place where the employer is located, whichever is lower. At the
end of each reporting period, the Group has made the provision for
severance compensation for the existing employees in the PRC.

w0 W B A WL GE

=T HIFFE

31. BEERAEE (&)

Hiat

(a)

(b)

RERBEBRE

RBEBEBGD REBARETHERT
EARERE SR AF2ETIE BB
HXMEBEFIE RN FREBURNME S 2 &
B-—2HLMRBFH WREREAEE
ZRINEH I REt 2N (BIASEER 2 4
K)o AR B B TF A E AN
ERETS

S R e
BREB-FENF—A—BRERZHF

BBERE WEBARERALEESSE
AIAEEAMEREEXNBERMEE EAXR%
B RERER G R ERERMES
FLAERBAIRR SN -

RIBESEERE  BERUHETIRIEES §5TK
—FEBE—EAFSHE M LRR12(E
H#ﬁ%%@IFﬁEﬂtiiﬁ:Fi@%?iBOO%Z
2 (ABEE /%) - REMEHR A&
lE?ﬁqﬂlfi*ﬁﬁAZ%ﬁﬂa&%ﬁ VR -

eSS ?”'ﬂx AR 2 7]

—IARAER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #Z —F—AFNNA=1+HILFE

32. PROMISSORY NOTES 32. A RE
Group and Company
AEBRAEQF
2015 2014
—E-1F —T-lmEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
At beginning of year R EA) 45,703 43,355
Interest charged W BRI & 4,297 2,348
Repayment B (50,000) -
At end of year RER - 45,703
Promissory notes with principal amount of HK$50,000,000 7N %8 578 #50,000,0007T 2 N R IE A
should be repayable in one lump sum on the fifth anniversary RENERBETERZ EFRBEFITE—
of the date of the issue of the promissory notes at no interest. RMEEERE ZEERNERIA IR TFET)
These promissory notes were stated initially at their fair AR BIRBIA BRI SRR B SHA AN E -
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using BERFIRE5325% R _ZE—UFE+—-A
the effective interest method. The effective interest rate +H B - 312,500,000 & Ax EE & #£0.16
was 5.325%. On 15 December 2014, 312,500,000 series B TCZBRFTI AR 1 EREB SR IE B 1T
convertible non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each LA#E & 7K ¢ %8 &% #50,000,0007T 2 7 H,
were issued for settlement of promissory notes in the principal FiEo

amount of HK$50,000,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

33. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the deferred tax liabilities and assets

recognised by the Group:

At 1 July 2013
Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year (note 20)
Credit to profit or loss for
the year (note 13)

At 30 June 2014 and
1July 2014
Business combination
(note 37(a))
Charge to other comprehensive
income for the year (note 20)
Credit to profit or loss for
the year (note 13)

At 30 June 2015

For the year ended 30 June 2015 & =

33. JRAERIR

T

F 7 5% [ fE R

Revaluation of

ZE-AFNA=THIFE

ELEHRBBRENREEN

plant and
Tax losses machinery Total
PBEBE BERKSEEMG &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
BT BT T BT T
R-_TE—=%+A—H - 845 845
RERNEM2E RSN
(H15£20) - 216 216
RERNB=RIIZ (F7213)
- (362) (362)
RZZE-—MEA=TAK
—ET-ME+H—H - 699 699
EBatt (Mid3a)
- 95 95
RERNEM2E RSN
(H15£20) - 405 405
RERNBREINZ (F1:213)
(1,121) (490) (1,611)
RZE—RAF A=A (1,121) 709 412)
HREBE (B HRA

TR TARER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 33. IERERIE (&)

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for statement of financial position purposes:

Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBEE
Deferred tax assets RIAEFRTEE B

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$55,219,000 (2014:
HK$68,384,000) available for offset against future profits
and are subject to the approval of the respective tax
authorities. A deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of HK$6,796,000 (2014: HK$Nil) of such losses. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
remaining HK$48,423,000 (2014: HK$68,384,000) due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams. Included
in unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately
HK$4,779,000, HK$3,148,000, HK$317,000 and
HK$128,000 that will expire in 2016, 2017, 2019 and
2020 respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in
subsidiaries are insignificant.

1 5 6’ Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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AN BB A N 5 EERIRGER (R

HIHR) DT
Group
EH
2015 2014
—E-1f —FmF
HK$000 HK$°000
BETFT BT T
709 699
(1,121) -
(412) 699

RS ER  NEE 2 KB A AR
Ko F) 2 TLIBE 1B 4 &8 #55,219,0007T
(== — P04 : 5 #68,384,0007T) ' BB
SRR G KB E - E R EEEIRE
#6,796,000L (ZE—MHF: BEZT)
BRELEHIBEE -BRNBIATEG ZARK
& M - 3 AR E A B R T 8 548,423,000
TT (ZZ — Y4 : 5 %68,384,0007T ) HER
BEFIBEE - RERBIEBERIES A
RZBE—RF ZE—+F ZT—NF
N ZZ T FE|H 2 42%%4,779,0007T
75 3,148,0007T ~ /8 #317,0007T & &
128,0007T 2 [E518 o F {th 754 16 &5 18 7] #E R HA
Ko

BRI B AR 2 ML 2 R 2 Y
TEA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A6 B R B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL 34, BA
Group and Company
AEBRAQF
2015 2014
—E-AfF —Z—UF
HK$000 HK$'000
B F T BT T
Authorised: EIE
70,000,000,000 (2014: 2,800,000,000)  70,000,000,000/%
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 —T—MmF:
(2014: HK$0.25) each 2,800,000,0000% )
BREEE0.017T
(ZZ—4F:
B H#0.2570) 2 EBX 700,000 700,000
2,000,000,000 (2014: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,000%
convertible non-voting preference (ZE—HmEF:
shares of HK$0.15 each 2,000,000,000/% )
BRREESBB0.157TZ
Al IR EREE LR 300,000 300,000
312,500,000 series B convertible 312,500,000/ & @&
non-voting preference shares of A #0.167T 2 BRI
HK$0.16 each AR EcREELER 50,000 -
1,050,000 1,000,000
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Issued and fully paid:

986,358,758 (2014: 986,358,758)
ordinary shares of HK$0.01
(2014: HK$0.25) each

1,103,333,333 (2014: 1,103,333,333)
convertible non-voting preference
shares of HK$0.15 each

312,500,000 series B convertible
non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.16 each

34. RA& (&)

Group and Company

AEERARDT
2015 2014
—E—RE —E—OF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ERTRAR:
986,358,758%
=it f= S
986,358,758% )
BRREES¥0.017T
(ZZE—py4F:
B#0.2570) 2 B 9,864 246,590
1,103,333,3330%
(ZZ—mF:
1,103,333,333/K)
Bl EEE¥0.157T2
A AR S A AR ST R 165,500 165,500
312,500,000/% 5 A% E (&
BE0.16 L Z BRI
ARG I R B IR 50,000 -
225,364 412,090

1 5 8 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of the movements in the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company during the years ended 30 June
2015 and 2014 is as follows:

34. RZ& ()

ARNFEHE-E—RAF R -_FT—MNF XA
E+H¢¢EW%&&E%H&$Z@
BEEN T

Number

Number of of series B

convertible convertible

Number of Number of Number of non-voting non-voting

ordinary ordinary ordinary preference preference

shares of shares of shares of shares of shares of
HKS0.05each  HKS$0.25each  HKS$0.01each  HKS0.15each  HK$0.16 each Par value

SREE

SRAE  A%016w2

SREE SREE SRAE  A%015tz  BRITER

AR5tz BH0BTZ  B%0ITZ THERERRE BREE
EERYA EEREA EEREA BEREA BEBREA HE
Note 000 000 000 000 000 HK$ 000
Vifia & F& F& Fi FiE BEFIT

Authorised: EE:

t 1July 2013 RZE2-=%+tA-A 14,000,000 - - 2,000,000 - 1,000,000
Share consolidation Biak @ (14,000,000 2,800,000 - - - -
At30June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZF-MESA=TAR

“Z-ME+A-B - 2,800,000 - 2,000,000 - 1,000,000
Capital reorganisation AREH ) - (2,800,000) 70,000,000 - - -
Increase in authorised share capital EERAE (© - - - - 312,500 50,000
At 30 June 2015 R=Z2-R2%~A=tH - - 70,000,000 2,000,000 312,500 1,050,000
Issued and fully paid: BRARMR:

t 1July 2013 RZZ2-=%+A-A 4,931,794 - - 1,103,333 - 412,090
Share consolidation Biaa b (@ (4,931,794) 986,359 - - - -
At30June 2014 and 1 July 2014 RZF-MESA=TAR

“T-mE+A-H - 986,359 - 1,103,333 - 412,090
Capital reorganisation AREH ) - (986,359) 986,359 - - (236,726)
Settlement of promissory notes BEEANZEE (© - - - - 312,500 50,000
At 30 June 2015 R=Z2-R1%~A=tH - - 986,359 1,103,333 312,500 225,364
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ —F—AF A=+ HILFE

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The

On 23 April 2014, every 5 shares of HK$0.05 each in the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were consolidated into
one consolidated share of HK$0.25 each in the issued and unissued
share capital of the Company.

On 20 August 2014, the par value of each issued consolidated
share of HK$0.25 was reduced to HK$0.01 by cancelling paid-up
capital to the extent of HK$0.24 on each issued consolidated share.
Immediately following the capital reduction, each authorised and
unissued consolidated share was subdivided into 25 new shares of
HK$0.01 each.

By an ordinary resolution passed on 26 November 2014 the
authorised share capital was increased from HK$1,000,000,000
divided into 70,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
and 2,000,000,000 convertible non-voting preference shares of
HK$0.15 each to HK$1,050,000,000 divided into 70,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each, 2,000,000,000 convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.15 each and 312,500,000 series
B convertible non-voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each by
the creation of an additional 312,500,000 series B convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each.

On 15 December 2014, 312,500,000 series B convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each were issued for
settlement of promissory notes in the principal amount of
HK$50,000,000.

Group’s objectives when managing capital are to

safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in

order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to

reduce the cost of capital.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated
as net debt divided by total equity. Net debt is calculated as
total liabilities (including current and non-current liabilities as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position) less
cash and cash equivalents. Total equity represents the equity as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

34. RZ& ()

RERFAABEARE AEREAEBH
BENTRRZBEEZRE REEXTR
RBIIHMBRNIHEERENRDER -

HEEANEMAR—B AREREEAR
bb R EZERE AN o b b R DA B 75 % FEER AR
DAARRTE - B FRARGEAER (85K
BMBRRARMRZRB NI ERBEE)
BIRE MRS HFEBEBFE ERAEE
AR RFTR Z e a o

R-E-—RAFR_T-—MNFA=THZ
BEAMBELERMT:

Total debt
Less: cash and cash equivalents

Net debt

Total equity

Gearing ratio

B @5
e kR EEAE

BT %5

2015 2014
—B-HF —ZT-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
42,185 157,776
(71,773) (43,565)
(29,588) 114,211
206,272 390,040
(14%) 29%

The decrease in gearing ratio during the year resulted primarily
from the decrease of bank and other loans after the disposal
of Charmston and settlement of promissory notes by issuance
of convertible non-voting preference shares.

REN EERGBHERTRIEANEE
BB B BERIT AR ER R E RS
EANRBERITREMETR DA -

e e 161



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
50 B RO B RE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ—ZF

34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

—AFENA=THIEFE

The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for the

Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it has to

have a public float of at least 25% of the shares. The Group

received a report from share registrars on substantial share

interests showing the non-public float and it demonstrated

continuing compliance with the 25% limit throughout the

year.

35. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements

therein are presented in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and

consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Company

At 1 July 2013

Loss for the year
Fair value changes of available-for-sale
financial assets

At 30 June 2014 and 1 July 2014

Loss for the year

Capital reorganisation (note 34(b))

Redlassification adjustments
for amounts transferred to
profit or loss upon disposal of
available-for-sale financial assets

At 30 June 2015

162
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34. RA& (&)

REBERERBE R 2 iz 2 ME—

HNER SR H & NARE A IR 2 R RFFR

ERZVARB% - ANEEBRMNERRE

E—OBRERBRREZEBEIZRN

BazmE HERAAEEREEAFER

—HEBT25%MREE -

35. &%

() x5H
AEBzFEIEZHSHCRNES
BalkHtrERERRGaERE
EyE SR

(b) AT

Capital Investment

Share redemption Accumulated revaluation

premium reserve losses reserve Total
RiVEE  EXEERE 2itBR  REERER ast
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BRTr ERTT BB E¥TT BB
612,523 150 (516,694) (531) 95,448
- - (98,886) - (98,886)

- - - 88 88
612,523 150 (615,580) (443) (3,350)
- - (296,259) - (296,259)

- - 236,726 - 236,726

- - - 443 443
612,523 150 (675,113) - (62,440)
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35. RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i)

(ii)

Share premium account

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 4(d) to the
consolidated financial statements.

(iii) Plant and machinery revaluation reserve

The plant and machinery revaluation reserve has
been set up and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies adopted for plant and machinery
in note 4(e) to the consolidated financial statements.

w0 W B A WL GE
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35. RESERVES (Continued)
(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iv) Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal
value of the shares repurchased which was paid out
of the distributable reserves of the Company.

(v) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-
for-sale financial assets held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy in note 4(k) to the
consolidated financial statements.

36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme")
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants include the full-time and
part-time employees, executives, officers, directors, business
consultants, suppliers, customers, legal and financial advisers
of the Company and the Company'’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 18 March 2008 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in
the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of shares options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the price of the Company's shares at the date of the
grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$10 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a certain vesting period and
ends on a date which is not later than five years from the
date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.
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36. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock
Exchange closing price of the Company's shares on the date of
the offer of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of the offer; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares on the date of the

offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holder to dividends

or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

No share options were granted, forfeited, exercised or expired

under the Scheme during the year.

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Business combination

As referred to in note 12, Ricotex ceased to be an
associate of the Company and Ricotex Group has been
accounted for as a subsidiary group of the Company since

30 June 2015.

The above business combination has been accounted for
using the acquisition method. Ricotex Group is engaged
in the manufacture and trading of garment products and

swimwear.
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. MEBREREXRMT (&

CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(@) ¥Bao (&)

(a) Business combination (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities ﬁﬁﬂﬂlﬁﬁﬂ* EEE 2 EANEERE
of Ricotex Group acquired as at its date of business EREXBEHRARCAFENT
combination is as follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount before Fair value
combination adjustments Fair value
RE BT
WEA 2 REE AP EAR ATE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT T
Net assets acquired: WEZFEE:
Property, plant and EN S
equipment 14,324 476 14,800
Inventories rE 1,584 - 1,584
Trade and other receivables — EUE 5 K& H A BR 5k 2,911 - 2,911
Bank and cash balances RITRRE BT 23,712 - 23,712
Loan from a non-controlling R B & iE 2 — & 2K
shareholder of Ricotex MR 2 B3 (10,000) - (10,000)
Trade and other payables JETE 5 R EHABRRK (12,398) - (12,398)
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE - (95) (95)
Net assets BEFE 20,133 381 20,514
Non-controlling interests IR (11,283)
Goodwill EES 61,457
Total consideration BRE 70,688
Total consideration, BRE ATHHFAI:
satisfied by:
Fair value of 45% interests W F|EE 7 45%ER 2
in Ricotex NS 70,688
Net cash inflow arising on ¥BEHEECHESRA
business combination: R
Cash and cash equivalents ~ WHE R e RFELEEEE
acquired 23,712
N

eSS ?”’Hx

—IARAER
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

168

Business combination (Continued)

The goodwill arising on the business combination of
Ricotex is attributable to the anticipated future operating
synergies from the combination.

If the business combination had been completed on
1 July 2014, total Group revenue for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$129,723,000, and loss for the year from
continuing operations would have been approximately
HK$256,781,000. The proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of operations of the
Group that actually would have been achieved had the
business combination been completed on 1 July 2014,
nor is intended to be a projection of future results.

Disposal of subsidiaries

As referred to in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements, on 21 October 2014, the Group
discontinued its trading and retail of apparel and related
accessories business at the time of the disposal of
Charmston. At the same time, the Company waived a
loan to Charmston of approximately HK$29,000,000.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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(a)

(b)
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of investment retained in Charmston at its fair value of
approximately HK$8,937,000. The gain is included in loss for
the year from discontinued operation.

S

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 37. REHERERMETE (&)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (Continued) (b) HEHBAR (&)
Net liabilities at the date of disposal were as follows: REERzBEFENT:
HK$°000

JEMF T
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 9,031
Trademark iz 9,568
Club debenture CES 205
Inventories 7531 64,422
Trade and other receivables U E 5 K E A BRI 28,567
Current tax assets BNERFRIA & &= 934
Pledged bank deposits EEBRITEFER 8,049
Bank and cash balances FITNIRE&F 8,541
Trade and other payables BTE S R EMERK (56,776)
Bank and other loans R1T &Eﬁﬂfﬁ?}’( (81,469)
Finance lease payables AR SENRK (58)
Employee benefit obligations EERMEE (368)
Current tax liabilities BNEffEIE B 1 (120)
Net liabilities disposed of HEZBEFE (9,474)
Reversal of write-down of WORIFIEL B 2 IERBEERE

non-current assets held for sale (10,142)
Non-controlling interests JEPE A = 5,470
Waiver of loan to Charmston et 2 BER 29,000
Direct cost to the disposal HE B EKA 723
Fair value of investment RS 2 IRENFE

in Charmston retained (7,076)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB ARz W (Ait14)

(note 14) 1,499
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BERE-UNBSZ 10,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEECZHESRAFRE:

Cash consideration received BUIRERE 10,000
Cash paid for direct cost MEAEKAN 2R S (723)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZRE MRS HEEE (8,541)

736
(*): The portion of the gain attributable to the recognition (%) HBERNEFRE 2 BEENBETD IR

HAF(ELB%8,937,0007T5 8 - Uk
Bt ARFEERIEEER BB
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37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

() Purchase of non-controlling interests

During the year, the Group acquired 47% interest in
a 53% owned subsidiary from the non-controlling
shareholder at a cash consideration of HK$1. The effect
of the acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners
of the Company is as follows:

Share of net liabilities in the
subsidiary acquired

Consideration RE

Loss on acquisition recognised directly
in equity

(d) Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the promissory notes were settled by
the issuance of 312,500,000 series B convertible non-
voting preference shares of HK$0.16 each in the principal
amount of HK$50,000,000.

38. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

On 19 May 2014, the directors resolved to dispose of all or
part of its business in the trading and retail of apparel and
related accessories in Hong Kong. Negotiations with several
interested parties had subsequently taken place. The assets
and liabilities attributable to the trading and retail of apparel
and related accessories business, which were expected to be
sold within twelve months, had been classified as a disposal
group held for sale and were presented separately in the
consolidated statement of financial position as of 30 June
2014. The disposal group was included in the Group’s apparel
and related accessories segment.

Luxey International (Holdings) Limited
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38. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE (Continued) 38. BIEHEZHRBEE (&)

The major classes of assets and liabilities comprising the RZZE—NFENA=TH DEARBELD
disposal group classified as held for sale at 30 June 2014 were %Zﬁ%%ﬂ%‘Jﬁﬁ@ﬁE&ﬁ%ZI%@ﬂ
as follows: P
HK$°000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment M WE R 6,890
Trademark ELE 9,568
Club debenture BES 205
Inventories ZE3 =1 43,641
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 K AR 5K 30,866
Current tax assets EVEARIE & B 62
Pledged bank deposits BRI T K 8,315
Bank and cash balances RITNRR e &F 5,351
Total assets classified as held for sale DIEABELE 2 EERE 104,898
Write-down of non-current assets held for sale MBI 1EHL & Z IERB & E (H17F14)
(note 14) (10,142)
94,756
Trade and other payables FEE 5 K B AR 5K 27,627
Bank and other loans RITREAMERK 46,330
Finance lease payables BEMHE RN RIE 84
Employee benefit obligations (note 31) BERMNEE (HiE31) 368
Current tax liabilities BNEATR IR B & 254

Total liabilities associated with assets classified HPDEAFIEHEELEHRB B ELRE

as held for sale 74,663
Net assets of disposal group HEMR 2 EEFE 20,093
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39. PENDING LITIGATION

—AFENA=THIEFE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the

following pending litigation:

On 19 January 2004, a winding up petition was filed

against the Company by certain ex-senior employees of the

Group claiming for payment in the sum of approximately

HK$594,000 from the Company in respect of an award/
order dated 20 October 2003 granted by the Labour Tribunal
in respect of the severance and bonus dispute between

the Company and the ex-senior employees. The unsettled

amounts of approximately HK$594,000 were fully accrued

in trade and other payables during the year ended 30 June
2005 and remain outstanding as at 30 June 2014 and 30 June
2015. The case has been ceased to be active since the year
ended 30 June 2005.

40. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 30 June 2015 the total future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

172

Within one year —F R

In the second to fifth years inclusive “FEEERF
(BIEEEME)

After five years hEFEE%
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BEHER-_ZZE=F+TAZ-+HRER
AHEZEFNRABRERZERE RIEA
MER ZHR P2 MARBIREZT
#) B #594,0007T c ZERE B ENAL
594,000 RNEE—_TERFA=1H
IEFE2HFAE S REMEMERERF
ERZE—MNEFXA=+tARZZE—HF
NAZTEMRBEH - ZEHEEE=ZT
TRFAA=-tHLEFERETHEER-

HEHAHE
RZE-—RFEXA=+H" fﬁﬂiITT
B EHE REEENRATEMT -
Group
rEE
2015 2014
—E-IfF —T-mF
HK$000 HK$°000
BEFT BT T
4,554 43,147
11,704 37,961
7,417 -
23,675 81,108




40. LEASE COMMITMENTS (Continued)

41.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

w0 W B A WL GE

For the year ended 30 June 2015 #tZ - F—AFNNA=1+HIFE

Operating lease payments represented rental payable by the
Group for certain of its offices, warehouses, director’s quarter
and car parking spaces. Leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 10 years and rentals are fixed over the lease
terms and do not include contingent rentals.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 41.

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,
the Group had the following transactions with its related
parties during the year:

40. HEAMA (&)

KEHENREASEREETHAE
RE -EEEEREEMEMN S - A
E AN 12105 - HHERNAEAEEE X
WEBERAREAE -

BEALXRS

GEEMBRRATHRBEZZEWEAL

RS REHIN AEBRFNEEREA
TZ2RBWT:

2015 2014

e —T-MEF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT

Sales to an associate HE T —EEE R F] 496 -
Purchases from an associate B — 5 & A R EREE 1,101 -
Interest income from an associate RE—FHEE R T2 ERA 93 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B I R A M

For the year ended 30 June 2015 EZ =%

s
—AFENA=THIEFE

42, EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

43,

174

On 18 May 2015, the board of directors proposed a bonus
share issue to the qualifying shareholders on the basis of
four bonus shares for every one existing share held on 3
July 2015 (the "Record Date"”). The bonus shares, upon
allotment and issue, will be credited as fully paid at par by
way of capitalisation of an amount equal to the total par
value of the bonus shares standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company. The board of directors also
proposed a bonus warrant issue to the qualifying shareholders
on the basis of one warrant for every one existing share held
on the Record Date. Each warrant will entitle the holder
thereof to subscribe in cash for one warrant share at an initial
subscription price of HK$0.18 per warrant share, subject to
adjustment, on the date falling 12 months from the date of
issue of the warrants.

The issue of bonus shares and bonus warrants were approved
by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 24 June 2015 and a total of
3,945,435,032 bonus shares and 986,358,758 warrants were
issued on 13 July 2015.

Please refer to announcements of the Company dated 18

May 2015, 24 June 2015, 25 June 2015 and 9 July 2015 and
circular dated 5 June 2015 for details.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 24 September 2015.
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The following is a summary of the published results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in

the note below:

RESULTS
Turnover

Continuing operations
Discontinued operation

Loss before tax

Income tax credit/(expense)

Loss for the year/period from

continuing operations

(Loss)/profit from discontinued

operations

Loss for the year/period

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

ES |
CEL

= zm, Z«< Py %ﬁk
BRIHIEET

FR BT E R
FrisiEe,/ (BR)

PR ES 2
E/HPEE
KEEKIEEEHY

(518) /% H

FE/HRER
THIALIEL

RREEBA
et

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
T 4F B B i

BTOIMEMESC EEMBRAREE %X
BUARBERABZHENT

Eighteen
months

Year ended Year ended ended Year ended Year ended
30 June 30 June 30 June 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2011 2010

Bz HE

HEZ BHE BE —ET——% ZE-TF
—E-HF | ZE—@mE =% +=-A +=A
~NB=tH ~A=1H ~NA=TH =+—H =+—H
tHEE HEE T NEA HEE HEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
BEFT B FT B F T BEFT BT T
121,251 96,644 154,548 72,307 6,231
36,403 172,233 292,325 182,240 91,676
157,654 268,877 446,873 254,547 97,907
(243,106) (90,169) (82,142) (296,673) (61,657)
181 209 (1,580) (668) -
(242,925) (89,960) (83,722) (297,341) (61,657)
(9,255) (26,141) (10,500) (40,874) 4,387
(252,180) (116,101) (94,222) (338,215) (57,270)
(245,444) (104,391) (84,992) (338,527) (55,196)
(6,736) (11,710) (9,230) 312 (2,074)
(252,180) (116,101) (94,222) (338,215) (57,270)

TR () ARAE

#g AR
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

o A B R

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
Non-current assets
Current assets
Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Net assets

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

1 76 Luxey International (Holdings) Limited

BERAHE
FRBDEE
REBEE
FRBEIE
mEEE

BEFE

THIAL I

AREHEAA
SRR
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At At At At At
30 June 30 June 30 June 31 December 31 December
2015 2014 2013 2011 2010
iy i
i) i B ZE——F Z—Z-ZF
—E2-1fF | ZT—mF ZE—=F +=A +=A
AB=Z+H | "E=tH ~A=1H =+—H =+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BETFT BETFT BETFT BETFT
162,015 391,902 462,194 498,073 114,292
86,442 155,914 177,957 217,979 148,302
- (46,402) (44,554) (40,527) (6,869)
(42,185) (111,374) (90,116) (154,829) (57,392)
206,272 390,040 505,481 520,696 198,333
195,439 405,494 509,225 514,655 203,628
10,833 (15,454) (3,744) 6,041 (5,295)
206,272 390,040 505,481 520,696 198,333
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